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Financial Highlights | Fiscal Years Ended

in thousands (except per share data) February |,2003 February 2,2002
(52 weeks) (52 weeks)

Consolidated Net Sales $ 3,240,087 $3,373,935
Net Earnings (Loss) * (144809) $ 28217
Earnings Before Accounting Change § 40233 $ 28217
Diluted Earnings (Loss) per Common Share * 8 @.98) $ 98
Diluted Earnings Before Accounting Change

per Common Share 8 141 $ 98
Weighted Average Number of Common Shares Qutstanding -

Diluted $ 20218 $ 28838

* Includes cumulative effect of accounting change of $186.1 million ($6.36 per dilutive share) due to the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, "Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets.”

Business Description

ShopKo Stores, Inc., a Fortune 500 company headquartered in Green Bay, Wisconsin, is a customer-driven retailer of quality
goods and services in two very distinct market environments; mid-sized to larger cities like Omaha, Nebraska and Salt Lake City,
Utah and the smaller communities of rural America like Lancaster, Wisconsin. Our retail operations include 363 stores in 23
states as of April |,2003. One hundred forty one stores are operated as ShopKo stores and 222 stores as Pamida stores in cities
and towns throughout the Midwest, Western Mountain and Pacific Northwest.

ShopKo Retail

The ShopKo division is a multi-department retailer committed to offering quality merchandise, services and value to meet
customers’ needs for home, family basics, casual apparel and seasonal products along with a special emphasis on retail health,
operating in-store pharmacies and optical centers. ShopKo operates clean, safe stores with a goal of providing each customer
with an excellent shopping experience so they will return to shop again. ShopKo strives to differentiate itself from its competition

by meeting customer needs more quickly and conveniently, and by anticipating the needs of its customers’ changing lifestyles.

ShopKo's corporate headquarters is located in Green Bay, Wisconsin.

Pamida Retail

The Pamida division offers consumers in small, rural communities a convenient one-stop shopping format. A typical store carries
a broad assortment of value-priced hardlines and softlines merchandise including consumables and convenience items. Presently
89 stores have pharmacies. Pamida stores are located in small towns where there is less competition from other retailers and its
merchandising strategy is to provide customers with a reliable and convenient family shopping experience featuring nationally

advertised brand-name products as well as select private-label merchandise at competitive prices.

Pamida’s corporate headquarters is located in Omaha, Nebraska.
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To Our Sharcholders

Fiscal year 2002 was a good year in many respects but there

were a few areas where we came up short. We are moving
rapidly to institute the changes necessary to make both our
ShopKo and Pamida divisions more competitive for the future.
But, before we comment on what’s ahead, let's start first with

a report on our just completed year.

2002 Business Goals

Factors we cannot control — the economy, political events and
consumer confidence — were negative influences this year.
Consumer confidence, in particular, reached a nine-year low
during the all important holiday season. Despite those trends,
we achieved each of the three goals outlined in last year’s letter

to shareholders.

- Liquidity improved substantially as net debt was reduced by
$182 million.This was in addition to the ${98 million reduction
in 2001, resulting in our lowest debt level in five years.

- Pamida’s earnings from operations recovered substantially
from the depressed levels of 2001 and the rate of decline in
comparable store sales lessened as the year progressed.

- Profitability, excluding the charge related to the adoption of
SFAS No. 142, increased considerably.

2002 Results

Our sales trends were a disappointment. Consolidated sales
were $3,240.2 million compared with $3,373.9 million last year
($3,318.0 million excluding closed stores). No new stores

were opened and Pamida closed two stores.

ShopKo division comparable store sales declined 1.1 percent for
the year. The trend through the year tended to follow consumer
confidence, up in the first half and down in the second half.
Pamida division comparable store sales declined 4.8 percent
but the rate of decline lessened each quarter. This improving
trend reflected operational improvements, better in-stock
conditions and a more aggressive promotional stance in the

second half of the year.

The reported net loss for the year was $144.8 million, or $4.95
per diluted share, after the charge for the write-off of goodwill
related to the Pamida acquisition. This charge was incurred
pursuant to the adoption of a new accounting pronouncement,
SFAS No. [42. Excluding that $186.1 million charge, net earnings

for the year would have been $41.2 million, or $1.41 per

diluted share. Fiscal 2001 earnings were $28.2 million, or $0.98
per diluted share, after including a charge for the amortization

of goodwill which was $5.1 million, or $0.18 per diluted share.

Both years’ results included credits to earnings for reductions

- in our LIFO reserve for inventory. The pretax credit in fiscal

2002 was $2.8 million, or $0.06 per diluted share; the prior
year’s pretax credit was $16.2 million, or $0.34 per diluted
share. The credits reflect a decline in product cost, which has

been our experience for each of the past six years.

ShopKo Division Highlights

Our ShopKo division delivered solid results for 2002 in what
was, and remains, a difficult retailing environment. The fourth
quarter in particular was very challenging because of some
disruptions to our advertising plans due to the longshore-
man’s work stoppage and because of the highly promotional

holiday season.

Merchandise margins improved for the year and expenses
were well controlled. Inventory was reduced for the second
year in a row, particularly in the distribution centers and store
backrooms. The reduction has not affected merchandise on the
shelf. However, increased expenses, sales softness and the
swing in the LIFO credit, discussed above, led to a decline in

operating profit for the year.

The year also saw newness and continued improved per-
formance in key merchandise areas. Most notable was the
launch of a new private label apparel brand, Bailey's Point. This
provided additional trend and fashion in the ladies area and

was carried over to the men’s area as well.

Our retail health businesses — pharmacy and optical — also had
an excellent year and now represent 27 percent of the ShopKo
division's sales. The future prospects for these areas are quite

promising, so we intend to explore additional opportunities.

Our biggest challenge for 2003 is to restore ShopKo's sales
growth. The combination of a strengthened management team,
new advertising and merchandising initiatives and continued

emphasis on retail health should move us in the right direction.

However, sustainable long term sales growth will require
investments in store renovations and new stores. It is our

current intention to do just that beginning in 2004.




Pamida Division Highlights

2002 was a successful transition year, marked by a return to
profitability. Operating profit improved to $11.3 million
compared with an operating loss of $12.7 million in 2001.
Gross margin expansion, which reflected reduced shrink and a
move to convenience pricing coupled with well managed

expenses, drove the fmprovement.

Management’s focus on better execution and operational
improvement were key contributors to the results. Despite an
overall reduction in inventory, in-stock conditions improved

for both regular and advertised merchandise.

We also modified the operating model, defining the merchandising
strategy as one of convenience and value. This strategy includes
adding more private {abel and value brands, as well as additional

merchandise categories such as snack food and junior apparel.

Fourteen pharmacies were added to existing stores during the
year, bringing the total count to 89 pharmacies. Pamida
benefits from adding a pharmacy to its existing stores the
same way ShopKo does and plans to keep expanding into this

area. Fifteen to {7 new pharmacies are planned for 2003.

Moving 2003 sales upward will be Pamida’s major challenge.
The increased advertising in the second half of 2002 was
beneficial and will be continued in 2003. New "Hometown
Values" products have had good acceptance so far, and Pamida
plans to expand the offerings. Planned additional pharmacies
will help also as will, we expect, the modest prototype revisions

discussed later in this letter.

Capital and Financing Plans

Capital expenditures during fiscal 2002 totaled $31 million, plus
we spent another $2.5 million on pharmacy file buys. During
the past two years our capital expenditures totaled about $50
million, while at the same time we reduced our net debt by
$380 million. A substantial portion of this improvement was

derived from inventory reductions.
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With the solid improvement in the company's financial health,
we are now resuming our focus on investing for fong-term
growth rather than investing substantially all of our cash flow

in debt reduction,

As announced last fall, the board of directors approved an $80
million capital plan for fiscal 2003. We are making excellent
progress with these plans. To assist in developing a clear
product position, we have engaged the services of a leading
consulting firm in retail and consumer products. Together we
will define corporate merchandising and marketing strategies

which will build upon the newly defined position.

A new prototype is being developed for ShopKo with plans to
be tested by renovating an existing store in Wisconsin. When
the work is completed later this year, the store’s appearance
will be substantially different with significant decor and

merchandising changes throughout.

Pamida is also testing prototype changes, though on a less
ambitious scale. Eleven stores are being modified to reduce
space devoted to softlines and add consumables and convenience
oriented items. The customers served by these 1| stores will also
receive a different version of the weekly advertising inserts to

further support the merchandising differentiation.

Both divisions are developing plans for new stores. Pamida is
exploring the possibility of opening a small number of stores
by taking over available existing buildings. We expect this to
keep both the cost, and the risk, low. ShopKo's new units wil)
likely be built from the ground up and, therefore, are not
expected to open until late in 2004. Both divisions are focus-

ing on markets in existing operating regions.

Technology is also an area with a renewed emphasis. We realize
that teammate productivity, effectiveness and morale are
directly related to the quality of the “tools” provided for their
jobs, so we're upgrading in a number of areas. For example, we
are currently in the process of installing an upgraded store
scheduling system. Pamida’s merchandising system was
upgraded last spring as was our corporate general ledger. None
of this will leapfrog us ahead of competition, but rather will allow

us to be more competitive.

We believe we can finance our entire 2003 capital plan from
operating cash flow and anticipate another year of net debt
reduction. However, the change will be substantially smaller
than the $380 million net debt reduction of the past two years
— forecasted to be in the range of $50 million to $75 million.
This reduction would be inclusive of retiring an issue of

senior notes due in August 2003.




It is important to add here that we also are operating with a
somewhat different decision making philosophy with respect
to analyzing and approving capital projects.While it has always
been ShopKo's practice, the emphasis on rigorous financial
analytic approaches has increased substantially. We believe this
will provide the necessary improved balance between business

judgment and financial discipline.

Management Organization

The past year has been quite significant in terms of our senior
management organization. Jeff Girard, vice chairman, finance
and administration, came aboard in April and also served as
interim CEO through October. We thank Jeff for his leadership

and assistance during the transition.

Steve Andrews joined us in October as senior vice president,
general counsel and Dan Bolstad joined us two months ago as
senior vice president, store operations and logistics. Their
addition to the senior management team provides a greater

depth of experience and insight in areas critical to our success.

Bringing Dan on board allowed us to separate the management of
our retail health operations and our ShopKo store operations. This
will permit Mike Bettiga, who previously had dual responsibilities,
to focus entirely on the retail health business for both ShopKe
and Pamida, as we believe retail health strategies will play an

increasingly important role in our business.

In January 2003 we reorganized ShopKo’s merchandising,
advertising and replenishment areas, promoting Kevin
Easton to executive vice president and ShopKo division chief
merchandising officer. We also promoted Doug Wurl to senior
vice president, general merchandise manager of hard/home.
These changes were designed to achieve tighter integration
between our merchandising organization and the support
functions within advertising and replenishment.We believe this

will create a stronger, merchandising driven business.

Corporate Governance

Our outlook for the year ahead is positive but we realize that
generating sales growth in a troubled economy, plagued by
weakened consumer sentiment, will be difficult. Despite this,
ShopKo will approach the challenge focused on its goals and

fostering a culture of integrity.

The accounting and other corporate scandals during the past
two years have led to a number of statutory and regulatory
changes for corporations. ShopKo management and the
board of directors have carefully reviewed the requirements
with outside counsel and other experts. ShopKo was already
following most of the required processes and the few which
were new to us have been put in place or will be in place

before the required dates.

We also want to welcome Richard Zona, CPA, to our board of
directors. Rick has an extensive background in banking and
finance, and will be a welcome addition to our board. Rick will

also serve on the audit committee.

Closing

Although this letter mentions a handful of senior executives,
ali they and we can do is set the tone and direction. [t is the
people highlighted throughout the annual report and all of
our teammates who will deliver on our plans. We want to
personally thank the 25,000 ShopKo and Pamida teammates
who contributed to the success realized in 2002 and who will

be responsible for our success in 2003.

We have budgeted for an improvement in ShopKo'’s comparable
store sales and an increase in corporate earnings. Given the
economic environment, this will be quite a challenge, but the
new merchandising leadership is moving rapidly to experiment

and change where appropriate.

Pamida’s improvement should come from fine tuning the changes
begun in 2002 along with the “mini” remodels currently underway
for 2003. And both divisions are working hard to prepare for a
resumption of disciplined growth in 2004.

We made important progress toward returning ShopKo to
financial and competitive good health in 2002 and are excited
by the opportunities we see for 2003. Thank you for the con-

fidence and trust you demonstrate by your investment.

Al s Gl &) Gyt

Sam Duncan Jack W, Eugster
President and
Chief Executive Officer

Chairman of the Board




A Q & A session with
Sam Duncamn

Q:VWhat attracted you to ShopKo?

A:l was very excited that the board of directors selected me to
lead this regional company. | spent my entire career with regional
retail companies and like the challenges and opportunities.
ShopKo has a strong foundation, and as I've found over the past

few months, great people with an outstanding work ethic.

Q:What are the opportunities you see with ShopKo?

A: In assessing the remarkable progress over the past two
years in a very difficult environment, | am inspired by how
much capacity this company has for change and how the team-
mates rose to meet the most difficult challenges. Because of
their efforts, we are now on solid financial footing and poised
to come out of our self imposed period of investing in debt
reduction to begin investing in growth. Be assured that our
investment will be carefully targeted and made with the

demands of appropriate financial stewardship.

Q:Would you share your plan for long-term growth?

A: Nothing positions us better for long-term growth than a
focus on store productivity and continued financial discipline.
Store productivity involves four areas we are focusing on at
this time: Repositioning of ShopKo stores’ merchandising to
build traffic counts and sales; adding convenience and greater
value to Pamida’s offering; expanding the retail health business
in both divisions and possibly in a new format; and leveraging
technology to improve profit margins. Elsewhere in this annual
report there are more detailed descriptions of where we
stand with each of these initiatives. As we move further along

in developing each area we will share our results.

Enhancing experience from the ground up

The floors in ShopKo Store 098 in Eugene, Oregon are so clean
and shiny, corporate visitors thought they were still wet. "They
said, can we walk on them," recalls maintenance module lead
Tom Stephens, "and | said, unless you can fly." Making the store
experience a pleasant one for customers and for everyone who
works there is a goal Tom embraces whole-heartedly. For 13
years he has lead the maintenance team with an attention to
detail and a positive attitude. Taking personal pride in the
appearance of the store is part of Tom's work ethic. "The better
the store looks," he explains, "the more customers will want to
shop here.”

Q: Pamida accomplished a considerable turnaround this year.
To what do you attribute that success?

A:The Pamida management team did an excellent job executing
its plan for recovery, which is much easier said than done.
Substantial efforts were made to better control inventories.
Shrink improved steadily throughout the year, as a result of the
right tone at the top and a great effort throughout the company.
Last, marketing, advertising and store services all made changes

to attract customers and deliver better customer service.

Q: Should shareholders expect additional Pamida improvement
in 2003?

A: ] know | do. There are many factors which may prevent
further improvement, but | believe the division is headed in
the right direction. Pamida’s in-stock condition improved sub-
stantially in 2002 and it's even better this year. The modifica-
tions to the marketing and advertising plans have improved the
sales trend. Merchandising is also making changes with the
introduction of “Hometown Values” products, principally in

consumables. Early consumer reaction has been good, and the

division is expanding the effort rapidly. Last, the testing of mini-
remodels is moving along well and encouragingly, consumers

are reacting positively to the early changes.

Q:Tell us more about your plans for retail health?

A:This has been just a tremendous business for us. The
pharmacy and optical businesses have been an important
part of ShopKe’s philosophy since its founding. These two
businesses represent 27 percent of ShopKo division sales and

16 percent of Pamida division sales last year. These are the




fastest growing segments of the business in both divisions,
and demographic trends are favorable, with industry sources
predicting annual growth potential in the range of |1 percent

to 14 percent over the next four years.

We plan to capitalize on these trends, with Pamida working to
substantially increase the pharmacy portion of its business.
Fourteen in-store pharmacies were added in 2002, bringing the
year end pharmacy count to 89 units. We would like to add an

even greater number in 2003.

We also realigned management to support these efforts. Our
retail health management team now focuses solely on managing
and growing this business; previously, the senior executive
responsible for retail health split his time by also overseeing

the ShopKo division’s main store operations.

To further leverage our retail health and management expertise,
responsibility for ShopKo's merchandising related products,
such as over-the-counter and health & beauty aids was trans-
ferred to the retail health group. Finally, one executive is now

focused solely on developing new pharmacy opportunities.

Q: Do you see potential for growth in retail health outside of
the traditional ShopKo and Pamida stores?

A:We are considering other opportunities for leveraging our
expertise and success with retail health. The demographic
trends are favorable, as noted earlier. The company experi-

mented in the past with a mail order pharmacy — which was

the seed for the subsequently divested ProVantage business.
ShopKo also experimented with freestanding optical centers
and audiology departments. Ve plan to aggressively examine

opportunities for retail health expansion in the coming years.

Q: How would you describe your management style?

A:I'li describe what | value in our executives and management,
and let that speak for my style. | believe in candor and frank
talk, not platitudes. I'm operating with a sense of urgency and |

expect the same from the rest of our team.

Effectiveness is also critical. Running fast is important, but
success will be measured in how we achieve our goals. Last,
there will be accountability. The investment of thousands of
shareholders and 25,000 teammates is at stake, and we will not
allow poor performance or poor performers to be a drag on

the company.




Toward a merchant driven
organization

More than ever, custormers are looking for trend-right merchan-
dise at a great price. Recently, the ShopKo division reorganized
its merchandising functions to better focus on exceeding
customer expectations when it comes to assortment, service
and value. In aligning the advertising and replenishment teams
with the merchandising team under the leadership of a single
chief merchant, we are positioned to respond rapidly and with
sharper focus on our customers’ changing lifestyle needs.

With new, revitalized leadership in pricing, advertising, store
operations, distribution, product development, trend services,
and merchandising, we're shaking things up to find a better way
to deliver a great customer experience. These new leaders,
some from within and others from outside our organization,
understand that creativity counts, that teammates can have fun
while doing the right thing for the company, and that a cal-
culated risk is sometimes a risk worth taking.

Making hard work look easy

A dedicated group of ShopKo and Pamida distribution and

logistics teammates worked together to reduce expenses in
2002. Their solutions improved distribution center scheduling
and receiving practices, streamlined product flow and reduced
overall inventory levels. By making better use of the distribution
network capacity, the company was able to close one of its
older, less efficient distribution centers. A true team effort.

Getting the teen attitude

What do teens want? A place to go with friends and shop for
cool clothes that won't break their budgets. That's what trend
manager Jana Graham and creative designer Erin Leanna found
out when they put together focus groups of girls ages {3
through |7, These children of employees were quick to share
their favorite ideas and biggest turn-offs as Jana and Erin
expertly guided their discussion. The result was some great
input that Jana and Erin used to help shape Urbanology, the
ShopKo teen "boutique” that generated great buzz.

At ShopKo, we are all merchants. ShopKo buyers choose the
product and make sure it's trend-right, the product development
team ensures the right quality, replenishment experts determine
the quantity and our distribution team delivers the product to
our stores. The pricing, advertising and signing teams provide
the right sales message, merchandise presentation for the stores
is planned, and store teammates do the selling.

We're keeping an eye on trends and on our competitors,
streamlining processes and moving fast to bring new products
to our stores and our customers. That’s what it means to be
merchant driven.




Better inventory
management

Inventory reduction was an essential element of our debt
reduction in 2002. Armed with driven, talented ShopKo and
Pamida teams, we embarked on a collaborative effort to
optimize the supply chain. We believed there were efficiencies
to be gained from the flow of goods from our vendor partners
to our distribution facilities, and to our stores and customers.

Fortunately, both divisions already had integrated distribution
networks, so the opportunity came in the way of inventory
management techniques. By utilizing the systems in place, we
changed the criteria for ordering merchandise, flowing mer-
chandise, and stocking it in our stores. Importantly, this transition
was not noticeable by the customer.

Because of these improvements, we had less inventory and
were flowing it closer to need. Both divisions experienced
gross margin rate improvements. Consolidated inventory
decreased $51 million in 2002 and days of inventory on hand
in our distribution facilities decreased by |1 days.

Overall, the effort in supply chain management allowed us to
exceed our debt reduction target for 2002. Even though these
initiatives were launched as part of a debt reduction strategy,
we have found this to be a far better way to operate and plan
to continue reducing inventory in 2003.

The look of a leader

When Jack Van Dong joined us in 1981, he set out on a road to
leadership that would take him to the far-flung reaches of our
ShopKo universe. From his job as a part-time cashier in Eau
Claire, Wisconsin, Jack made his way through the store, taking
on assignments on the salesfloor, at the service desk, in
maintenance and eventually in management. He traveled to
Spencer, lowa for his first Store Team Leader assignment, and
then honed his management skills in Kingsford, Michigan and
Ashwaubenon, Wisconsin. Now, as Regional Director for
Region | in Green Bay, jack is known for his ability to teach and
motivate a team, getting the most out of each team member
and calling on the wisdom born of long experience to help
people overcome obstacles to reach their full potential. All
that, and he's the friendliest guy you'd ever want to meet -
that's what makes him a ShopKo leader.




Contributing at work and in
the community

The renewed spirit and can-do attitude in our Pamida stores has
come about because team members like Jennifer Camden have
taken up the cause. Nif, as her teammates call her, has led the
way with ideas to make the work place better and to facilitate a
productive team. As a Pamida employee relations specialist at
the corporate headquarters in Omaha, Nebraska, Nif handles all
difficult and delicate situations with skill and kindness. And she
generously extends her expertise and caring to the community
by actively leading a local Explorer group (related to Boy Scouts
of America) and participating in the Omaha chapter of the
Society for Human Resources' diversity committee.

Understanding the
personality of Pamida

Pamida made great strides in 2002, defining opportunities for
the division. Now we are launching plans to maximize those
opportunities and make Pamida more unique in the markets
it serves.

In these small, rural communities where convenience and value
are paramount, we have listened closely to our customer and
given new meaning to Pamida’s longstanding “Hometown
Values” credo.

To these customers, Pamida is one of the major retailers in
their hometown — in some locations, the only major retailer.
Pamida customers enjoy the convenience of shopping close to
home, saving the time znd expense of driving several miles to
the next closest retail destination.

And more than ever Pamida is focused on providing value to
customers, with more promotional buys and merchandise
displays organized by exceptional price points.

Pamida Sales Mix: Pharmacy Growing

2002

2001

Hardlines Softlines Pharmacy

End stand displays are being used for advertised and value
priced merchandise and the message to the customer is
very clear — we've got the products you need at prices you
can afford.

There's more to come. We'll continue to add the convenience
of pharmacies (see next page) and are testing a new Pamida
prototype with greater focus on convenience, consumables
and hardlines, and less emphasis on apparel.

One thing is certain: the Pamida team is up for the challenge.
Fortified by recent success and having learned from the
challenges of the past two years, Pamida teammates have the
determination and can-do spirit that comes only from achieving
success the hard way. They understand the work is far from
finished and are focused on implementing 2003 plans.

M@mez?@mp







T he right spirit moves mountains

Or, at least, climbs them. And Michele fanzen, senior optical
buyer at ShopKo headquarters in Green Bay, Wisconsin has
such spirit. In February she climbed Africa's highest mountain,
Mount Kilimanjaro in Tanzania. Her feat was part of Climb for
Sight 2003, an organization which combats child blindness and
provides eyecare to youth in Guatemala. With the goal of
raising $10,000 for to be used for sight-saving surgeries, Michele
was eager to tackle the 19,336-foot peak, saying, "It seemed like
the perfect opportunity to make a difference.”

ShopKo Sales Mix: Retail Health Services Growing

2002

2001

Hardlines Softlines Retail Health

Growing Retafl
Health Services

Qur pharmacy and optical departments are major components
of our company, representing 27 percent of the ShopKo
division's sales for 2002, while the in-store pharmacy business
represented 16 percent of the Pamida division’s sales.
Supporting this growth in 2002, we purchased | | pharmacy
files for existing ShopKo pharmacies, opened 14 new
pharmacies in Pamida stores and bought two pharmacy files
for existing Pamida pharmacies.

We believe this business continues to represent significant
opportunity for our company. According to industry experts, the
overall pharmacy sector sales alone are projected to grow at an
annual rate of || percent to |4 percent. The aging population,
new drug introductions and greater drug utilization are some
of the important drivers supporting these growth projections.

To capitalize on these trends, we continue to aggressively
support this business. After the first two months of fiscal
2003, we have purchased five pharmacy files for ShopKo, and
have opened one pharmacy and purchased two pharmacy files
for Pamida. Our 2003 Pamida expansion plan calls for 15 to 17
new pharmacies.

We look forward to exploring other opportunities to leverage
the potential of this proven performer and to continuing our
offerings of quality health services to our customers.
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Item 1. Business

General

ShopKo Stores, Inc. (“ShopKo” or the “Company”), a Wisconsin corporation, was incorporated in
1961 and in 1971 became a wholly owned subsidiary of Supervalu Inc. (“Supervalu”). On October 16,
1991, the Company sold 17,250,000 common shares or 54% of equity ownership in an initial public
offering. On July 2, 1997, Supervalu exited its remaining 46% investment in the Company through a
stock buyback and secondary public offering. The Company’s principal executive offices are located at
700 Pilgrim Way, Green Bay, Wisconsin 54304, and its telephone number is (920) 422-2211. The
Company’s internet website can be found at www.shopko.com. ShopKo's annual report on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to such reports are
available on this website as soon as reasonably practicable after they have been filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission. In addition, the Company makes information about quarterly
webcasts and recent press releases available on its website.

The Company has two business segments: a ShopKo Retail segment and a Pamida Retall
segment. The ShopKo Retail segment consists of a multi-departiment retailer operating under the
“ShopKo” name, located primarily in mid-size and larger communities. The ShopKo retail stores are
committed to offering quality merchandise, services and value to meet customers’ needs for home,
family basics, casual apparel and seasonal products along with a special emphasis on retail health,
operating in-store pharmacies and optical centers. As of February 1, 2003, the Company had
141 ShopKo retail stores operating in 15 Midwest, Pacific Northwest and Western Mountain states.
The Pamida Retail segment is a general merchandise retailer serving smalier and more rural
communities, offering a convenient, one-stop shopping format. As of February 1, 2003, the Company
had 223 Pamida retail stores operating in 16 Midwest, North Central and Rocky Mountain states.
Financial information about these segments is included in Note J of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for fiscal year 2002.

ShopKo Retail
Merchandising Philosophy—ShopKo Retail

ShopKo Retail is commitied to offering quality merchandise, services and value to meet
customers’ requirements for health, home, family basics, casual apparel and seasonal needs in its
stores with speed, friendliness and simplicity. ShopKo Retail strives to differentiate itself from its
competition by meeting customer needs more quickly and conveniently, and by anticipating the needs
of its customers’ changing lifestyles.

ShopKo’s strategy is to focus on selected merchandise categories tied to its customers’ changing
lifestyle needs.
ShopKo aims to deliver a superior customer experience in its retail stores by:
® being a merchant-driven organization, responding to the wants and needs of its customers,
¢ exceeding customers’ expectations in terms of merchandise assortment, service and value,
® ensuring that merchandise, particularly advertised merchandise, is available for purchase, and
® providing simplicity, speed and friendliness in the shopping experience.

ShopKo provides quality trend-correct, casual lifestyle merchandise at compelling prices in an
attractive, customer-friendly shopping environment.
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Merchandising and Services—ShopKo Retail

The ShopKo Retail store net sales mix for the last three fiscal years was:

2002 2001 2000

Hardlines ............ 53% 55% 57%
Softlines ............. 20% 21% 21%
RetailHealth .. ........ 27%  24% 22%

ShopKo Retail stores carry a wide assortment of trend-correct branded and private label softline
goods, including:

& women's, men’s and children’s apparel,
® shoes,

& jewelry,

@& cosmetics, and

© accessories.

ShopKo also carries a wide assortment of seasonal and everyday basic categories of hardline
goods such as:

© housewares, ® music/videos,

® home textiles, ® toys,

@ household supplies, & sporting goods,

@ health and beauty aids, & greeting cards and gift wrap,
@& home entertainment products, @ candy,

© small appliances, © snack foods, and

@ furniture, @ lawn and garden.

ShopKo carries a broad assoriment of merchandise o provide customers with a convenient one-
stop shopping source for everyday items. ShopKo’s accommodating customer service policies provide
customers with a pleasant shopping experience.

ShopKo continually seeks to offer ieading national brand names in its merchandise lines. It
concenirates on brands that have wide customer acceptance and provide quality and value. In
addition, ShopKo seeks to maintain the appropriate mix of private label goods through its well-
developed private label programs. ShopKo’s in-house quality assurance and technical design team
analyzes and develops the quality of its fashion offerings. This allows ShopKo to deliver a better and
more consistent product, with greater control and efficiency.

The Company also provides retail health services in most of its ShopKo stores. Of the Company’s
141 stores as of February 1, 2003, 140 include retail pharmacies and optical centers. In addition to
generating store traffic and building customer loyalty, these services contribute significantly to the
Company’s overall profitability and provide the opportunity for additional growth. ShopKo's pharmacies
filled over 12.7 million prescriptions in fiscal 2002, compared to 12.2 million prescriptions in fiscal 2001.
ShopKo’s optometrists perform in-store eye exams and prescribe correctional lenses, most of which
are fabricated in the Company’s centralized optical laboratory and in approximately 91 in-store finishing
labs. In fiscal 2002, ShopKo dispensed over 683,000 eyewear prescriptions, compared o 679,000
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eyewear prescriptions in fiscal 2001. The in-store finishing labs typically service other ShopKo stores in
the vicinity and provide customers with same day or next day optical service for single vision lenses.

Marketing and Advertising—ShopKo Retail

ShopKo markets its general merchandise and retail pharmacy and optical services by using
weekly newspaper circulars, which enables ShopKo to reach a broad-based group of customers
consisting largely of middle-income families. These full-color circulars average 20 pages and feature
values in all of the departments in ShopKo's stores and have a circulation of 4.4 million. ShopKo uses
direct mail advertisements selectively during key promotional periods. These direct mail
advertisements average 56 pages and have a circulation of 5.8 million. All printed advertising materials
are designed by the Company's in-house design team and photographed in the Company’s own
photography studios. In addition to the newspaper circulars and direct mail advertisements, ShopKo
uses television and radio advertising as secondary media to support key events.

In general, ShopKo uses its frequent advertising of a large group of high demand items to
reinforce its competitive value image and to generate store traffic, rather than attempting to meet the
lowest available price on every item.

ShopKo Retzil Store Layout and Design

ShopKo stores are designed for simplicity, speed and ease of the shopping experience. The
stores emphasize ShopKo’s customers’ lifestyles and brand awareness. The stores feature competitive
assortments of softlines, home and hardlines products as well as pharmacy and optical centers. The
pharmacy and optical centers are located in the front of the store for added convenience. Health and
Beauty Aids and Over The Counter products have been positioned adjacent to the pharmacy, in most
stores, to provide a total health care environment. ShopKo designs the remainder of the store in a
“racetrack” configuration that assists customers in navigating easily throughout the store. ShopKo
presents high impulse, high volume promotional items prominently on fixture endcaps.

The Company is testing various store layouts, display techniques and merchandise mixes in
defining its evolving prototype format for both existing and new stores, through a well-managed asset
maintenance program. The Company expects to introduce a new ShopKo prototype store in fiscal
2003, which will be continually modified and updated. The Company’s current average ShopKo store
size is over 90,000 square feet. Future store size may vary depending on changes to the Company’s
prototype design, the community, and the retail competition in the immediate area.

ShopXo Retail Store Operations and Management
ShopKo's store operations organization focuses on:
o strong leadership,
® precise, consistent execution,
© an outstanding customer expetience, and
@ maximizing profitability.
ShopKo strives for continuous improvements in the overall customer experience. The ShopKo
operating model has been integrated into store operations with significant improvements in operating

efficiency and dedication to customer service. The store operations organization is designed on a
framework of three leadership planks: people, performance and profit.
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People. The Company has lowered teammate turnover the past three years by focusing on an
improved work environment and quality training programs. The current focus is improving the
leadership capacity of every leader. This education is intended to sharpen management’s ability to
serve our customers and maximize our profitability.

Performance. The Company has implemented a set of in-store measures that regularly monitor
performance in each store. The measures are specifically focused to gauge the customer experience
and maximize profit. The Company continually monitors performance to emphasize successes and
positive trends.

Profit. ShopKo has invesied in technology to remove unnecessary labor from non-selling
functions. Store teams are keenly aware of their store performance and are rewarded through incentive
programs designed to stretch beyond plan profit goals.

ShopKo holds its store operations management teams accountable for execution of aggressive
plans and achievement of comprehensive goals. ShopKo emphasizes ongoing development of its
management teams to ensure that it has the competencies required for continued success.

Purchasing and Distribution—ShopKo Retail

ShopKo purchases merchandise from more than 1,500 vendors. ShopKo's ten largest vendors
accounted for approximately 40.8% of ShopKo’s purchases during fiscal 2002. ShopKo believes that
most merchandise, other than branded goods, is available from a variety of sources. ShopKo is
working with its entire supply chain to link its vendors into ShopKo’s general merchandise business
planning process to reduce costs and to replenish its inventory more efficiently. The majority of
ShoplKo’s vendors are linked to its electronic data interchange purchase order systems. Select vendors
electronically receive point-of-sale information from ShopKo, which allows them to respond to changing
inventory levels in the stores. In addition, the majority of ShopKo’s vendors are electronically
transmitting invoices directly into the Company’s automated invoice matching system.

Purchasing and distribution of merchandise is a critical aspect of our business. The Company
controls the flow of main store and optical merchandise through the use of centralized purchasing,
replenishment and allocation processes and information systems. Allocation and distribution
management is closely tied to the merchandise buying organization to effectively control and plan
merchandise logistics. ShopKo’s pharmacy merchandise is replenished primarily through the use of a
distributor. Pharmacies are electronically linked to the distributor and place orders as product is
needed.

Direct imports accounted for approximately 7.9% of ShopKo’s purchases, based upon cost of
goods, during fiscal 2002. ShopKo buys its impoited goods principally in the Far East and ships the
goods to its distribution centers for distribution to the stores.

ShopKo has three distribution centers strategically located throughout the United States to
efficiently support its retail operations. Utilization of distribution centers has enabled ShopKo to:

® purchase the majority of its merchandise directly from manufacturers, which reduces its cost of
goods,

@ reduce direct vendor-to-store deliveries, which reduces freight expense and cost of goods
through consolidated volume purchasing, and

& increase its pick and pull capabilities, enhancing the effectiveness and efficiency of its store
replenishment process.




ShopKo believes that these cost reductions help it remain price-competitive. During fiscal 2002,
approximately 89% of the merchandise sold by ShopKo, excluding optical and pharmaceutical
products, flowed through its distribution centers.

Pursuant to a license agreement, Payless ShoeSource, Inc. operates a shoe department (other
than certain nationally-branded athletic shoes) in every ShopKo store. ShopKo retains a percentage of
the gross proceeds collected as rent.

Management Information Systemns—ShopKo Retail

ShopKo uses information technology to improve customer service, reduce operating costs and
provide useful information to help ShopKo make timely decisions regarding merchandising. ShopKo
uses modern point-of-sale terminal systems for electronic price lookup and tracking sales information
at store and Stock Keeping Unit (SKU) level. ShopKo uses frame relay communications technology to
provide real-time, on-line credit card and check authorization. ShopKo uses portable radio-frequency
terminals extensively in its stores for merchandise receiving, stocking, replenishment, pricing and label
printing.

ShopKo's merchandising systems provide for integrated perpetual inventory management,
automated replenishment, promotional planning, space planning, merchandise financial planning and
assortment planning. In addition, ShopKo converts transaction-based raw data it amasses daily into
actionable reporting which serves as a decision support tool for the Company’s management.

ShopKo’s warehouse management system provides complete warehouse functionality such as
conveyor control and direction of picking and put-away processes by using portable radio-frequency
terminals. In addition, this system is highly integrated with the Company’s central information systems
through its telecommunications network, thereby ensuring up-to-date perpetual inventory records, as
well as facilitating highly accurate merchandise allocation and distribution decisions to its management
team.

ShopKo uses electronic commerce technology in support of its focus on total supply chain
management. This includes integrated replenishment systems, vendor-managed inventories and
electronic data interchange. ShopKo believes that these tools have resulted in higher in-stock service
levels, optimized inventory levels and greater productivity.

Expansion—ShopKo Retail

The Company does not currently anticipate pursuing growth of the ShopKo retail business through
the addition of new stores in fiscal 2003. See item 7—Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources. Nonetheless, the
Company expects to explore and test alternative platforms for re-establishing growth within the
Company. Costs for conversion of existing stores to the new prototype design, as well as the timing of
renovations of existing stores, will depend on a variety of factors, including the success of the new
prototype. As conditions allow, the Company intends to consider increasing the number of ShopKo
retail stores to achieve economies of scale and to capitalize on the Company’s existing infrastructure.
The Company currently plans to resume opening new ShopKo stores in existing markets in 2004. The
Company’'s plans with respect to new store growth are subject to change, and there can be no
assurances that the Company will achieve its plans.

Competition—ShopKo Retail

The discount general merchandise business is very competitive. ShopKo competes in most of its
markets with a variety of national, regional and local discount stores, national category killers, specialty

5



niche retailers, catalog merchants and Internet retailers. In addition, departiment stores compete with
some branded merchandise lines, discount specialty retail chains compete with scme merchandise
lines such as health and beauty aids, household cleaning and supplies, electronics, bed and bath,
housewares, casual furniture and toys, and pharmaceutical and optical operations compete with some
of ShopKo’s pharmacy and optical centers. ShopKo believes that the principal competitive factors in its
markets include:

@ store location;

¢ differentiated merchandising;

@ competitive pricing;

@ quality of product selection;

& afttractiveness and cleanliness of the stores;

e responsiveness to changing lifestyle needs and regional and local trends;
& customer service;

& in-stock availability of merchandise; and

© advertising.

ShopKo’s principal national general merchandise discount chain competitors are Wal-Mart, Kmart
and Target, each of which is substantially larger than, and has greater resources than, the Company.

The percentage of ShopKo stores where these competitors are present within the apblicable
market is as follows:

s Wal-Mart 96%
® Kmant 1%
@ Target 74%

ShopKo also competes with regional chains in some markets in the Midwest and the Pacific Northwest.
These competitors continue to open new stores in ShopKo’s markets.

Historically, the entry of one of these chains into an area served by a ShopKo store generally has
had an adverse effect on the affected store’s sales growth for approximately 12 months. After the 12
moenth time period, the ShopKo store generally has resumed a positive growth trend, although not
necessarily to previous levels. Entry by one of these competitors into a ShopKo market often has
resulied in permanently intensified price competition. In addition, ShopKo store sales are generaliy
negatively affected by a competitoi’s increased saturation through expansion, relocation and additional
stores in an existing market. The Company’s efficiency measures and distribution center expenditures
are important aspects of ShopKo's efforts to maintain or improve operating margins and market share
in these markets.

Seasonality—ShopKo Retait

ShopKo’s retail general merchandise operations are highly seasonal. Historically, ShopKo's third
and fourth fiscal quarters have contributed a significant part of the Company’s earnings due to the
Christmas selling season.

Pamida Retai!

On July 8, 1998, the Company acquired all of the outstanding voting and nonvoting common stock
of Pamida, Inc. {“Pamida”) for $94.0 million in cash, $285.8 million in assumed debt and $138.6 million
in assumed trade and other accrued liabilities. Pamida is a retail chain headquartered in Omaha,
Nebraska.




Merchandising Philosophy-—Pamida Retaii

Pamida’s strategy is to offer consumers in small, rural communities a convenient one-stop
shopping format. A typical store carries a broad assortment of value-priced softlines and hardlines
merchandise, including consumables, and 89 of Pamida’s 223 stores have retail pharmacies.

Pamida stores generally are located in small towns where there often is less competition from
another major general merchandise retailer and which Pamida considers to be either too small to
support more than one major general merchandise retailer (thereby creating a potential barrier to entry
by a major competitor) or too small to attract competitors whose stores generally are designed to serve
larger populations.

Pamida’s merchandising strategy is to provide customers with a reliable and convenient family
shopping experience featuring nationally advertised brand-name products as well as select private-
label merchandise at competitive prices. Pamida stores are self-service. Advertising circulars are run
weekly. Pamida places special emphasis on maintaining a strong in-stock position in all merchandise
categories.

Merchandising and Services—Pamida Retail
The Pamida Retail store net sales mix for the last three fiscal years was:

2002 2009 2000

Hardlines .................. 67% 69% 70%
Softlines ................... 17% 18% 19%
Pharmacy .................. 16% 13% 11%

Pamida’s softlines division includes:
® men’s, women's, children’s and infant's clothing,
e men’s and women'’s footwear,
® jewelry and accessories, and
® cosmetics.

Pamida’s hardlines division includes categories such as:

® home furnishings, ® seasonal,

e hardware, ® consumables,

® domestics, & health and beauty aids,
® electronics, € automotive, and

® |lawn and garden, ® foys.

As of February 1, 2003, Pamida owned and operated pharmacies in 87 of its stores with an
additional two pharmacies leased to and operated by independent pharmacists. The pharmacies have
proven to be effective in building customer loyalty and atiracting customers who are likely to purchase
other items in addition to prescription drugs. Pamida intends to aggressively grow its pharmacy base,
looking to add 15 to 20 pharmacies per year for the next couple of years.

Marketing and Advertising—Pamida Retail

Pamida’s advertising primarily utilizes colorful weekly circulars coordinated by an internal
advertising staff. Circulars advertise brand-name and other merchandise at competitive prices.
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Pamida Retall Store Layout and Design

, The Company tests various alternative layouts and merchandising mixes for its Pamida stores and

is currently remodeling several stores to reduce the space devoted to softlines, with more space 10 be
devoted to consumables and convenience-oriented items. If the test is successful, more stores will be
converted to the newer design. Pamida historically has invested approximately $3.0 to $3.2 million in
building a new store, but is currently exploring the less expensive alternative of leasing existing retail
locations for expansion and growth. The risks associated with this alternative will be minimized through
the negotiation of shorter lease terms and options for lease extensions.

Pamida’'s stores average approximately 27,500 square feet of sales area and range in size from
approximately 8,000 to 50,000 square fest of sales area. Historically, Pamida has used a 35,000
square foot prototype when building new stores, but will continue to make adjustments to its prototype
as it identifies new strategies and trends.

Pamida Retail Store Operations and Management

The methods Pamida employs to build customer loyalty and satisfaction are weekly advertised
specials, competitive pricing, clean and orderly stores and friendly, well-frained personnel.

Purchasing and Distribution—Pamida Retail

Pamida maintains a centralized purchasing, merchandise allocation and space planning staff at its
central offices. Pamida’s point-of-sale data equipment provides current information to Pamida’s buyers
and inventory management specialists to assist them in managing inventories, effecting prompt
reorders of popular items, eliminating slow-selling merchandise and reducing markdowns.

Centralized purchasing enables Pamida to more effectively control the cost of merchandise and to
take advantage of promotional programs and volume discounts offered by certain vendors. Pamida
continuously seeks to optimize merchandise costs.

Pamida purchases merchandise from more than 1,500 vendors. Pamida’s ten largest vendors
accounted for approximately 33.1% of Pamida’s purchases during fiscal 2002. Pamida believes that
most merchandise, other than branded goods, is available from a variety of sources. Pamida is working
with its entire supply chain to link its vendors into Pamida’s general merchandise business planning
process to reduce costs and to replenish its inventory more efficiently. The majority of Pamida’s
vendors are linked to its electronic data interchange purchase order systems. Select vendors
electronically receive point-of-sale information from Pamida, which allows them to respond to changing
inventory levels in the stores. In addition, the majority of Pamida’s vendors are electronically
transmitting invoices directly into the Company’s automated invoice matching system.

Pamida has entered into an agreement with Payless ShoeSource, Inc. to be the primary vendor
within the shoe category.

Purchasing and distribution of merchandise is a critical aspect of Pamida’s business. The
Company controls the flow of main store merchandise through the use of centralized purchasing,
replenishment and allocation processes and information systems. Allocation and distribution
management is closely tied to the merchandise buying organization to effectively control and plan
merchandise logistics. Pamida’s pharmacy merchandise is replenished primarily through the use of a
distributor. Pharmacies are electronically linked to the distributor and place orders, as product is
needed.




Direct imports accounted for approximately 4.7% of Pamida’s purchases, based upon cost of
goods, during fiscal 2002. Pamida buys its imported goods principally in the Far East and ships the
goods to its distribution centers for distribution to the stores.

Pamida operates distribution facilities in Omaha, Nebraska and Lebanon, Indiana; both of which
serve primarily as distribution centers for bulk shipments and promotional and replenishment
merchandise on which cost savings can be realized through quantity purchasing. During fiscal 2002,
approximately 78% of Pamida’s merchandise, excluding pharmaceutical products, was distributed to
the stores through these distribution centers, while the remaining merchandise was supplied directly to
the stores by manufacturers or distributors.

The primary Omaha distribution facility is 336,000 square feet. Pamida owns another distribution
center in Omaha, which is 135,000 square feet and is used primarily as a cross-dock operation for
seasonal merchandise. The Lebanon distribution center is 418,000 square feet and is used as a full-
service operation providing both full-case and less-than-case merchandise distribution, similar to the
primary Omaha facility.

Management information Systems—Pamida Retail

Similar to ShopKo, Pamida employs an up-to-date suite of integrated retail information systems,
including merchandise procurement, inventory management, automated replenishment, merchandise
and space planning, warehouse management, pharmacy management and point of sale.

In fiscal 2002, the Company consolidated Pamida’s data center and information technology
support functions into the corporate headquarters in Green Bay, Wisconsin. In addition, during fiscal
2002, Pamida completed a major upgrade of its core merchandise management system and is in the
process of implementing a centralized pharmacy claims management system.

Expansion—Pamida Retail

On June 29, 2000, the Company acquired the retail chain, P.M. Place Stores Company (“Places”),
which operated 49 discount stores in Missouri, lowa, Kansas, and lllinois. Forty-eight of these stores
were reopened as Pamida stores, and one Places store, located in an existing Pamida location, was
closed. During fiscal 2000, Pamida opened 76 new stores, including the 48 converted Places stores,
and closed four stores. During fiscal 2001, four additional stores were closed. During fiscal 2002,
Pamida closed two stores, decreasing the total number of Pamida stores to 223 as of February 1, 2003.

The Company does not currently anticipate pursuing significant growth of the Pamida retail
business in fiscal 2003 through the addition of new stores. However, the Company does plan on
expanding pharmacy locations in existing Pamida retail stores and is examining the possibility of
leasing existing retail locations as described earlier. The Company intends to return to modest store
growth as conditions allow, and the Company has identified numerous communities as potential sites
for Pamida stores and in which it believes it can achieve a leading market position. There is, however,
no assurance that the Company will open stores in such communities or on any particular time
schedule.

Competition—Pamida Retail

The general merchandise retail business is highly competitive. Pamida’s stores generally compete
with other general merchandise retailers, supermarkets, drug and specialty stores, mail order and
catalog merchants, Internet retailers and, in some communities, department stores. The type and
degree of competition and the number of competitors with which Pamida’s stores compete vary by
market.




Pamida stores generally are located in small towns where there is no direct local competition from
another major general merchandise retailer in the town, and which may be either too small to support
more than one major general merchandise retailer (thereby creating a potential barrier to entry by a
major competitor) or too small to attract competitors whose stores generally are designed to serve
larger populations.

The percentage of Pamida stores where national general merchandise discount chains are
present {(within 10 miles) is as follows:

e Wal-Mart 13%
e Kmart 8%
e Target 2%

In recent years Pamida’s business strategy has been to focus its store expansion program on
communities with less likelinood of the entry of a new major competitor, but there can be no assurance
that in the future major competitors will not open additional stores in Pamida’'s markets.

Seasonality—Pamida Retail

Pamida’s business, like that of most other general merchandise retailers, is seasonal. First quarter
sales are lower than sales during the other three fiscal quarters, while fourth quarter sales amount to
approximately 28% of the full year's sales and normally involve a greater proportion of higher margin
merchandise.

Discontinued Operations

At the start of fiscal 2000, the Company maintained a 64.5% ownership interest in ProVantage
Health Services, Inc. (“ProVantage”). ProVantage provided health benefit management services,
pharmacy mail services, vision benefit management services and health information technology and
clinical support services. On June 16, 2000, the Company sold its interest in ProVantage pursuant to a
tender offer by a third party to acquire all of the outstanding shares of ProVantage. For financial
information regarding the sale, see Note A of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Consclidated
Employees

The Company employs approximately 18,900 persons in its ShopKo division, of whom
approximately 7,500 are full-time employees and 11,400 are pari-time employees and approximately
6,500 persons in its Pamida division, of whom approximately 3,100 are full-time employees and 3,400
are part-time employees. During the Christmas shopping season, the Company typically employs
additional persons on a temporary basis. No employees of the Company are covered by collective
bargaining agreements.

Government Regulation

The Company’'s pharmacy and optical services business is subject to extensive federal and state
laws and regulations governing, among other things:

Licensure and Regulation of Retail Pharmacies and Optical Centers

There are extensive federal and state regulations applicable to the practice of pharmacy and
optometry at the retail level. Most states have laws and regulations governing the operation and
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licensing of pharmacies and optical centers, and regulate standards of professional practice by
pharmacy and optical service providers. These regulations are issued by an administrative body in
each state, typically a pharmacy board or board of optometry, which is empowered to impose
sanctions for non-compliance.

Future Legislative Initiatives

Legislative and regulatory initiatives pertaining to such healthcare related issues as
reimbursement policies, payment practices, therapeutic substitution programs, and other healthcare
cost containment issues are frequently introduced at both the state and federal level. The Company is
unable to predict accurately whether or when legislation may be enacted or regulations may be
adopted relating to the Company’s pharmacy and optical services operations or what the effect of such
legislation or regulations may be.

Substantial Compliance

The Company’s management believes the Company is in substantial compliance with, or is in the
process of complying with, all existing statutes and regulations material to the operation of the
Company’s pharmacy and optical services businesses and, to date, no state or federal agency has
taken enforcement action against the Company for any material non-compliance, and to the
Company’s knowledge, no such enforcement against the Company is presently contemplated.

Forward-Looking Statements and Risk Factors

In accordance with the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, the Company can obtain a
“safe-harbor’ for forward-looking statements by identifying those statements and by accompanying
those statements with cautionary statements which identify factors that could cause actual resuits to
differ from those in the forward-looking statements. Accordingly, the following information contains or
may contain forward-looking statements: (1) information included or incorporated by reference in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, including, without limitation, statements made under Item 1, Business,
and under ltem 7, Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations, (2) information included or incorporated by reference in future filings by the Company with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) including, without limitation, statements with respect
to growth, acquisition and expansion plans, store layouts and evolving prototypes, financing plans and
projected sales, revenues, earnings, costs and capital expenditures, and (3) information contained in
written material, releases and oral statements issued by, or on behalf of, the Company including,
without limitation, statements with respect to growth, acquisition and expansion plans, store layouts
and evolving prototypes, financing plans and projected sales, revenues, earnings, costs and capital
expenditures. The Company’s actual results may differ materially from those contained in the forward-
looking statements identified above. Factors which may cause such a difference to occur include, but
are not limited to, (i) the impact of recent accounting pronouncements as described herein, (ii) the risk
factors described below, and (iii) other risks described from time to time in the Company’s SEC filings.

An investment in ShopKo’s Common Stock or other securities carries certain risks. Investors
should carefully consider the risks described below and other risks, which may be disclosed from time
to time in ShopKo’s filings with the SEC, before investing in ShopKo’'s Common Stock or other
securities.

The Company has a significant amount of debt, which could adversely affect its business and
growth prospects. At February 1, 2003, the Company had approximately $455.2 million of total debt
and lease obligations, including $40.0 million outstanding on a senior secured credit facility (the
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“Secured Credit Facility”). The restrictions and limitations in the Secured Credit Facility, as well as the
significant amount of debt in general, could have material adverse effects on the Company’s business.
For example, it:

© makes it more difficult for the Company to obtain additional financing on favorable terms,
© restricts capital expenditures,

¢ requires the Company to dedicate a substantial portion of its cash flows from operations to the
repayment of its debt and the interest on its debt,

© limits the Company’s ability to open new stores or to make acquisitions,
o limits the Company’s ability to capitalize on significant business opportunities,

© makes the Company more vulnerable to economic downturns, adverse retail industry
conditions and competitive pressures, and subjects the Company to certain covenants which
restrict its ability to operate its business.

The Company finances a significant portion of its operations through vendor financing. The credit
terms provided by the Company’s vendors are an important source of financing for the Company’s
operations. Future operating performance could negatively impact the favorable credit terms the
Company now maintains with these vendors. If the credit terms provided to the Company by a
significant portion of its vendors were to deteriorate, the Company would be materially adversely
affected.

The Company may not achieve the expected benefits of current or future reorganizations. During
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000, the Company announced a strategic reorganization plan to improve
the productivity of its assets and reduce debt. The plan included store and distribution center closings
and a charge 1o earnings of approximately $125 million. The Company believes that implementation of
the plan has resulted in an increase in the Company’s profitability and efficiency. However, the analysis
underlying this plan involved many variables and uncertainties. Based on the overall softness in the
real estate market and an independent valuation analysis, the Company determined that an additional
$6.0 million should be added to the reserve in the fourth quarter of 2002. The Company may not
achieve all of the expected benefits of its plan and additional charges may be necessary in the future.
There can be no assurances that additional reorganizations of this nature, together with related
charges to earnings, will not be required in the future to improve the productivity and efficiency in the
Company’s ShopKo and Pamida segments. Such reorganizations and charges to earnings could have
a material adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations.

The Company may be unable o execute its expansion plans, which may have a significant
adverse effect on its financial performance and its growth strategy and prospects. The Company
considers expansion in the number of its retail stores to be an integral part of its plan to achieve
projected operating results in future years. in an effort to reduce the Company’s overall debt, as well as
to comply with the restrictions and limitations in its Secured Credit Facility, the Company does not
anticipate opening any significant number of new retail locations in fiscal 2003. Fuithermore, the
Company expects that any new stores will typically require an extended period of time to reach the
sales and profitability levels of its existing stores. The opening of any new stores does not ensure that
those stores will ever be as profitable as existing stores, especially when those new stores are opened
in highly competitive markets. The failure to expand by opening new retail stores as planned and the
failure to generate anticipated sales and earnings growth in markets where new siores are opened
could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s future sales growth and profitability.

If the Company is not able to remodel its existing store base on schedule or to carry out such
plans in a cost-effective manner, then the Company’s results of operations and financial condition
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could be materially adversely affected. The Company believes that the identification of new store
designs to fit its customers’ changing lifestyles and preferences and the remodeling of its stores is a
necessary aspect of its growth plans. The failure to upgrade the Company’s existing retail stores could
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s anticipated sales and profitability. To the extent the
Company is able to upgrade its existing stores, the associated expenses could result in a significant
impact on our net income in the future and there can be no assurance that these upgrades will
generate any of the anticipated benefits.

The Company’s quarterly performance fluctuates, which may cause volatility or a decline in the
price of its securities. Fluctuations in the Company’s quarterly operating results have occurred in the
past and may occur in the future based on a variety of factors, including:

® seasonality in the Company’s operations, especially during the Christmas selling season which
has historically contributed a significant part of the Company’s earnings and primarily impacts
the fourth fiscal quarter,

® inventory imbalances caused by unanticipated fluctuations in consumer demand or
inefficiencies in the Company’s distribution centers and methods,

& margin rate compression resulting from competitive pricing pressure,
® increases and decreases in advertising and promotional expenses,
& changes in the Company’s product mix,

e the ability to manage operating expenses, and

® the competitive and general economic conditions discussed below.

These fluctuations could cause the Company’s operating results to vary considerably from quarter
to quarter and could materially adversely affect the market price of its securities.

Competition in the retail industry could limit ShopKo’s growth opportunities and reduce its
profitability. The Company competes in the discount retail merchandise business. This business is
highly competitive. The competitive environment subjects the Company to the risk of reduced
profitability. The Company competes with other discount retail merchants as well as mass merchants,
catalog merchants, internet retailers and other general merchandise, apparel and household
merchandise retailers. The discount retail merchandise business is subject to excess capacity and
some of the Company’s competitors are much larger and have substantially greater resources than the
Company. The competition for customers and store locations has intensified in recent years as larger
competitors, such as Wal-Mart, Kmart and Target, have moved into the Company’s geographic
markets. The Company expects a further increase in competition from these national discount retailers.
There can be no assurance the Company will be able to continue to compete successfully.

The long-term economic effects of U.S. and international political unrest and an extended
economic slowdown could negatively affect the Company’s financial condition. The existing conflict in
Iraq, terrorist attacks, the national and international responses to terrorist attacks and other acts of war
or hostility have created many economic uncerainties. These events could adversely affect the
Company’s business and operating results in ways that presently cannot be predicted. if terrorist
attacks, political unrest, international conflict or other factors cause further overall economic decline,
the Company’s financial condition and operating resuits could be materially adversely affected.

General economic conditions and adverse weather could have a significant adverse effect on the
Company's business. The Company operates its retail stores in limited regions of the country. To the
extent adverse economic conditions and weather have a regional impact on the regions in which the
Company operates, the Company may be disproportionately susceptible to such factors compared to
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peers that have a larger, national base of operations. General economic factors in the regions in which
the Company operates that are beyond its control may materially adversely affect its forecasts and
actual performance. The factors that may materially adversely affect its forecasts and actual
performance include energy prices, interest rates, recession, inflation, deflation, consumer credit
availability, consumer debt levels, tax rates and policy, unemployment trends and other matters that
influence consumer confidence and spending. Increasing volatility in financial markets may cause
these factors to change with a greater degree of frequency and magnitude. Because the Company’s
business is subject to adverse weather conditions in its retail markets, particularly in the Midwest,
Western Mountain and Pacific Northwest regions, its operating results may be unexpectedly and
materially adversely affected. Frequent or unusually heavy snow, ice or rain storms in its markets could
have a material adverse effect on its sales and earnings and could adversely impact its ability to make
scheduled interest payments on its indebtedness.

The Company is dependent on the smooth functioning of its distribution network. The Company
relies upon the ability to replenish its depleted inventory through deliveries to its distribution centers
from vendors, and from the distribution centers to its stores and, to a limited extent, directi-to-store
deliveries from vendors. Problems that cause delays or interruptions in the distribution network could
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business and results of operations.

Labor conditions may have a material adverse impact on its performance. If the Company cannot
attract and retain quality employees, its business will suffer. The Company depends on attracting and
retaining quality employees. Many of its employees are in entry level or part-time positions with
historically high rates of turnover. The Company may be unable to meet its labor needs while
controlling costs due to external factors such as unemployment levels, minimum wage legislation and
changing demographics.

Anti-takeover provisions in the Company’s organizational documents and statutes may inhibit
premium offers for its common stock. Anti-takeover provisions in its amended and restated articles of
incorporation, by-laws and Wisconsin law and its rights plan may deter unfriendly offers or other efforts
to obtain control of the Company. This could make the Company less attractive to a potential acquirer
and deprive its shareholders of opporiunities to sell their shares of common stock at a premium price.

Pending or future changes in federal, state or local laws or regulations could negatively impact the
Company. Various aspects of the Company’s operations are subject to federal, state and local laws,
rules and regulations. Any of these laws, rules or regulations could change at any time. Such changes
could have the effect of increasing the Company’s exposure to liabilities, increasing the cost of
operations or restricting the ability to set prices. This is especially true with respect to our pharmacy
business, which could be subject to any number of legislative proposals regarding prescription drugs.

Pending or future litigation could subject the Company to significant monetary damages. |f the
Company becomes subject to liability claims that are in excess of its insurance coverage or are not
covered by its insurance policies, the Company may be liable for damages and other expenses which
could have a material adverse effect on its business, operating results and financial condition. In
addition, any claims against the Company, regardless of merit or eventual outcome, may have a
material adverse effect on its reputation and business. The sale of retail merchandise and provision of
in-store pharmacy and optical services entail a risk of litigation and liability. The Company is currently
subject to a number of lawsuits, and expects that from time to time it will be subject to similar suits in
the ordinary course of business. The Company currently maintains insurance intended to cover a
majority of liability claims, subject to a $250,000 deductible for general liability claims and for liability
claims arising from prescription dispensing errors. The Company believes that its insurance coverage
is adequate. The Company cannot assure that it will be able to maintain appropriate types or levels of
insurance in the future, that adequate replacement policies will be available on acceptable terms, or
that insurance will cover all claims against the Company.
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ltem 2. Properties

As of February 1, 2003, the Company operated 141 ShopKo retail stores in 15 Midwest, Western
Mountain and Pacific Northwest states. The following table sets forth the geographic distribution of
these ShopKo stores as of the indicated date:

# of # of
State Stores State Stores
California ................. 1 Nebraska ............... 11
Colorado ................. 3 Nevada ................ 3
Idaho .................... 9 Oregon ................ 4
Minois .....covvvevennn.. i0 SouthDakota ........... 6
lowa...........ccccivnn. 5 Uah................... i5
Michigan ................. 4  Washington ............. 10
Minnesota ................ 18 Wisconsin .............. 42
Montana ................. 5

Total .......oveviennns 141

As of February 1, 2003, the Company operated 223 Pamida retail stores in 16 Midwest, North
Central and Rocky Mountain states. The following table sets forth the geographic distribution of the
present Pamida stores:

# of # of

State Stores State Stores
Minois ................... 8 Montana ............... 6
Indiana .................. 9 Nebraska............... 14
loWa . ..o 42 NorthDakota............ 7
Kansas .................. 5§ Ohio................... 14
Kentucky ................. 9 SouthDakota ........... 6
Michigan ................. 19 Tennessee ............. 4
Minnesota ................ 26  Wisconsin .............. 18
Missouri .................. 27 Wyoming ............... ]
Total .................. 223

Of the Company’s 364 ShopKo and Pamida retail stores at February 1, 2003 the number of stores
owned and leased are listed below:

Owns Building
Owns Land and  Subject to Ground Leases Land

Buliding Outright Lease and Building Totai
ShopKo Stores ..., 113* 8 20 141
PamidaStores ............. .. ... o . 63 1 158 223
Total oo 176 9

79 34

* Fifteen of which are subject to mortgages.

The ground leases expire at various dates ranging from 2012 through 2038 and the other leases
expire at various dates ranging from 2003 through 2023.
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As of February 1, 2003, the Company’s other principal properties were as follows:

8q. Ft of
Bullding
Location Use Space Title
GreenBay, Wl ...................... ShopKo Corporate Headquariers 228,000 Owned
Lawrence, WH....................... ShopKo Corporate Headquarters—
South Annex/Return Center 114,300 Owned
DePere, Wl .............c.ooviint, ShopKo Distribution Center 494,000 Owned
Boise,ID ..... ... ... . ShopKo Distribution Center 347,000 Owned
Omaha, NE ............ ... ...t ShopKo Distribution Center 394,000 Owned
Ashwaubenon, Wl ................... ShopKo Optical Lab 29,000 Owned
Omaha, NE ... ............ccien.. Pamida Corporate Headquarters/
Distribution Center 215,000 Owned
Omaha,NE ... ...... ... ... .. ... ... Pamida Distribution Center 336,000 Owned
Lebanon,IN ........ ... ... oot Pamida Distribution Center 418,000 lLeased
Omaha,NE ... ......... ... ... .. ..... Pamida Return Center 40,000 Owned

item 3. Legal Proceedings

In the normal course of business, the Company has been named as a defendant in various
lawsuits. Some of these lawsuits involve claims for substantial amounts. Although the ultimate outcome
of these lawsuits cannot be ascertained at this time, it is the opinion of management, after consuitation
with counsel, that the resolution of such suits will not have a material adverse effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Company.

in addition, the Company is involved in two purported class action lawsuits. First, during fiscal
2000, the Company was added as a defendant in a purported class action (the “ProVantage Action”)
fled May 8, 2000 in the Circuit Court of the State of Wisconsin for Waukesha County by
James Jorgensen (Allen v. ProVantage Health Services; Case No. 00CV-938), an alleged stockholder
of ProVantage Health Services, Inc. (“ProVantage”). The original complaint in the ProVantage Action
(the “Original Complaint”) named ProVantage and the directors of ProVantage as defendants (the
“Original Defendants”) and alleged, among other things, that (1) ProVantage’s directors breached their
fiduciary duties in connection with the sale of ProVantage to Merck & Co., Inc. (“Merck”), and (2) the
proposed price for ProVantage’s common stock did not represent the true value of ProVantage.

On or about August 18, 2000, an amended complaint (the “Amended Complaint”) was filed in the
ProVantage Action which, among other things, added the Company as a defendant. The Amended
Complaint alleges, among other things, that the Company aided and abetted the Original Defendants
in breaching their fiduciary duties. The Amended Complaint requests that the Circuit Court, among
other things, declare that the ProVantage Action is a proper class action, rescind the tender offer/
merger pursuant to which ProVantage was purchased by Merck, and award compensatory monetary
damages, including reasonable attorneys’ and experis’ fees.

Second, during fiscal 2001, alleged shareholiders of the Company filed purported class action
securities lawsuits against the Company and its then chief executive officer containing substantially
identical claims in the Federal District Court for the Eastern District of Wisconsin. The suits were
consolidated into one action (In Re ShopKo's Securities Litigation No. 01-C-1034 (E.D. Wis.)). The
action alleges that the Company and its former chief executive officer, William Podany, made various
misrepresentations and omissions in public disclosures concerning the Company between
March 8, 2000 and November 9, 2000. Specifically, it is alleged that the Company failed to disclose
that the Company was experiencing significant shipping and inventory control problems at the Pamida
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distribution facility in Lebanon, Indiana. The complaints request, among other things, that the court
declare the action is a proper class action and award compensatory monetary damages, including
reasonable attorneys’ fees and experts’ fees. On or about February 5, 2003, the Court granted, in part,
the Company’s motion to dismiss the action, ruling that all allegations are dismissed except those
based on statements made in connection with an earnings warning on October 5, 2000. As a result of
the Court’s ruling, the class period and potential class is significantly narrowed.

The Company believes the above-described actions to be without merit and the Company intends
to contest all allegations set forth. There can be no assurances, however, with regard to the outcome
of the actions.

item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Hoiders

There were no matters submitted to a vote of the security holders of Registrant during the fourth
quarter of fiscal year 2002.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Served in Employed
Current By the
Position Company

Name M Position™ Since Since

SamK.Duncan.................. 51 President and Chief Executive 2002 2002
Officer

JeffreyC. Girard ................. 55 Vice Chairman, Finance and 2002 2002
Administration

Kevind. Easton .................. 46 Executive Vice President, Chief 2003 2001
Merchandising Officer

Steven R.Andrews ............... 50 Senior Vice President, General 2002 2002
Counsel

BrianW.Bender ................. 54 Senior Vice President, Chief 2000 2000
Financial Officer

Michael J. Bettiga ................ 49  Senior Vice President, Retail 2003 1977
Health Operations

DanJ.Bolstad ................... 50 Senior Vice President, Store 2003 2003
Operations and Logistics

PaulA.Burrows ................. 54  Senior Vice President, Chief 1988 1998
Information Officer

PennisC.Folz................... 55 Senior Vice President, Human 1999 1998
Resources

Michael J. Hopkins ............... 52 President, Pamida Division 19889 19985

Rodney D. Lawrence ............. 45 Senior Vice President, Property 1996 1996
Development

DouglasN. Wurl ................. 41  Senior Vice President, General 2003 2000
Merchandise Manager—Hardlines
and Home

*  as of February 1, 2003
** as of April 11, 2003
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There are no family relationships between or among any of the directors or executive officers of
the Company.

The term of office of each executive officer is from one annual meeting of the directors until the
next annual meeting of directors or until a successor for each is selected.

There are no arrangements or understandings between any of the executive officers of the
Company and any other person (not an officer or director of the Company acting as such) pursuant to
which any of the executive officers were selected as an officer of the Company.

Each of the executive officers of the Company has been in the employ of the Company for more
than five years, except for Sam K. Duncan, Kevin J. Easton, Steven R. Andrews, Brian W. Bender,
Dan J. Bolstad, Dennis C. Folz, Jeffrey C. Girard, and Douglas N. Wurl.

Mr. Duncan has been President, Chief Executive Officer since October 2002. Prior to joining
ShopKo, Mr. Duncan most recently served as President of Fred Meyer Corporation, a large general
merchandise and food retailer and a division of Kroger, Inc., from February 2001 to October 2002.
From 1869 to 1991, Mr. Duncan served in numerous roles for Albertson’s, eventually being named
Albertson’s director of operations in 1991. He joined Fred Meyer in 1992 as Vice President Grocery
depantment and was promoted thiough the executive merchandising ranks. Mr. Duncan was named
Executive Vice President of Fred Meyer's food division in 19987. In 1998, Fred Meyer Corporation
acquired Ralph's Super Markets and Mr. Duncan was named President of Ralph’s Super Markets,
serving in that position from 1998 to 2001.

Mr. Easton was promoted to Executive Vice President and Chief Merchandising Officer in January
2003. He had been Senior Vice President, General Merchandise Manager, Apparel & Accessories
since August 2001. Prior to joining the Company, he was Senior Vice President, e-Commerce,
Marketing & Sales for CIVISnet Corporation from March 2000 to March 2001. From 1987 to 1999,
Mr. Easton held various positions with Target Stores, most recently Vice President, Merchandise
Manager, Men'’s Division from 1993 to 1999. Prior to that, for nine years Mr. Easton held various
positions with divisions of Federated Department Stores.

Mr. Andrews has been Senior Vice President, General Counsel since Cctober 2002. Prior to
joining ShopKo, Mr. Andrews was Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of
PepsiAmericas, Inc. (formerly Whitman Corporation) from May 1999 to August 2001. Before joining
Whitman, Mr. Andrews was the interim President and Chief Executive Officer of Multigraphics, Inc.
from February to May of 1999 and Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of Multigraphics
from 1994 to 1999. Multigraphics was a worldwide manufacturer and distributor of graphic aris and
printing products.

Mr. Bender has been Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer since October 2000. Prior to
joining ShopKo, Mr. Bender most recently served as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer at
Egghead.com from November 1996 to December 1999. Mr. Bender also served in that role at
Egghead.com from May 1995 to May 1996. Mr. Bender was Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer at Proffitt’s, Inc. in 1896 and Senior Vice President and Controller at Younkers, Inc. from 1993
to 1995. From 1976 to 1893, Mr. Bender served in numerous roles for May Department Stores and its
divisions, including Corporate Vice President for Capital Planning and Analysis at May from 1987 to
1989; and Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer at Sibley’s from 1989 to 1390 and at May
D&F from 1990 to 1993.

Mr. Bolstad joined ShopKo Stores in March 2003 as Senior Vice President, Store Operations and
Logistics. Prior to joining ShopKo, Mr. Bolstad most recently served as Senior Vice President,
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Operations Group of Fred Meyer Corporation, a large general merchandise and food retailer and a
division of Kroger, Inc., from October 2000 to February 2003. He joined Fred Meyer in 1976 as a store
management trainee and was promoted to local, disfrict, regional and corporate store operations
leadership positions. In 2000, he assumed responsibility for logistics management of all Fred Meyer
businesses.

Mr. Folz has been Senior Vice President, Human Resources since May 1999. He was Vice
President of Organization and Leadership Development since he joined the Company in August 1998.
From 1987 to August 1998, Mr. Folz held various positions with Personnel Decisions, Inc., most
recently Partner and Senior Vice President of Organizational Effectiveness.

Mr. Girard has been a director of the Company since June 1991. Effective April 9, 2002, Mr, Girard
became the Vice Chairman, Finance and Administration and Interim Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, a role he held until Mr. Duncan joined the Company in October 2002. Mr. Girard continues
in the role of Vice Chairman, Finance and Administration. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Girard was
the President of Girard & Co. of Minneapolis, Minnesota, a private consulting company, from 1999 to
2002 and from 1997 to 1999 was an Adjunct Professor at the Carlson School of Management,
University of Minnesota. He served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of
Supervaly, Inc. from October 1992 through July 1997; prior thereto, he heid the positions of Executive
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of Supermarkets General Holdings Corporation
and Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Supervalu, Inc.

Mr. Wurl is currently Senior Vice President, General Merchandise Manager—Hardlines and Home.
He has had responsibility for the Home segment since December 2001, and in January 2003, he
assumed responsibility for the Hardlines segment as well. He was Vice President, Division
Merchandise Manager since he joined the Company in May 2000. From 138388 to May 2000, Mr. Wurl
served as Vice President Merchandise Manager for Rich’s Department Store, a division of Federated
Department Stores. Prior to that, Mr. Wurl was Director of Merchandise and Product Development for
Home Textiles for Federated Merchandising Group, a division of Federated Department Stores from
1993-1998. From 1983 to 1993, Mr. Wurl held varicus positions with divisions of May Department
Stores.
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PARTN

item 5. MMarket for the Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Shareholder Matters

ShopKo Stores, Inc. common shares are listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the
symbol “SKO” and in the newspapers as “ShopKo.” As of March 28, 2003, ShopKo’s common shares

were held by 2,482 record owners,

The following table sets forth the high and low reported closing sales prices for the Common Stock
 for the last two fiscal years as reported on the New York Stock Exchange Composite Tape.

High Low

Fiscal Year 2001

First Quarter (ended May 5,2001) ................... $10.7000 $ 7.3500

Second Quarter (ended August4, 2001) .............. $ 9.0000 $ 6.7800

Third Quarter (ended November 3,2001) ............. $ 9.7400 $ 7.2000

Fourth Quarter (ended February 2,2002) ............. $12.6800 $ 8.5600
Fiscal Year 2002

First Quarter (ended May 4,2002) ................... $22.4800 $12.5100

Second Quarter (ended August 3,2002) .............. $21.4600 $15.1500

Third Quarter (ended November2,2002) ............. $17.0000 $11.0000

Fourth Quarter (ended February 1,2003) ............. $16.2100 $10.7600

The closing sales price of the Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange on March 28,

2003 was $11.30 per share.

The Company’s Secured Credit Facility (see Note E of the Notes to the Consolidated Finangcial
Statements) has a restrictive covenant that prohibits the payment of dividends. The Company has not
paid any cash dividends in the last two years. The Company currently intends to retain earnings for the
payment of debt and future growth and expansion of its business and not to declare or pay any cash

dividends.

Equity Compensation Plan informaticon

{a) (b)

©

Numiber of securities Number of securities remaining
to be issued upon Weighted-average available for future issuance
exercise of exercise price of under equity compensation
ocutstanding options, outstanding options, plans (excluding securities
Plan Category warrants and rights  warrants and rights reflected in column (a})
Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders .. 3,110,042 $16.55 570,885
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders .. 0 0 0
Total ..............coelt, 3,110,042 $16.55 570,985
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Summary of Operations (Miilions)
Net sales
Licensed department rentais and other income
Grossmargin .. ....cooviiiii i
Selling, general and administrative expenses . .
Specialcharges(4) .......................
Restructuringcharge .....................
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Interest expense—net ........... ... ...,
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations

before Incometaxes ....................
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations . . . .
Discontinued operations—net ..............
Earnings (loss) before accounting change and

extraordinary item
Net earnings (loss) .......................

Per Share Data (Dollars)

Basic earnings (loss) per common share from
continuing operations ...................
Basic net earnings (loss) per common share . .
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share from
continuing operations
Diluted net earnings (loss) per common share .
Cash dividends declared per common share(7)
Financial Data (Millions)
Workingcapital .......... ... o ool
Property and equipment—net
Total assets
Total debt(8)
Total shareholders’ equity
Capital expenditures

Financial Ratios
Currentratio ............... ..o,
Return on beginningassets ................
Return on beginning shareholders’ equity
Total debt as % of total capitalization(9)

Other Year End Data
ShopKo stores openatyearend ............
Average ShopKo store size—square feet
Pamida stores openatyearend ............
Average Pamida store size—square feet

FISCAL YEARS ENDED

Feb. 1, Feb. 2, Feb. 3, Jan. 28, Jan. 30,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
{52 Wks) (52 Wks) (53 Wks)(2) (52 Wks) (1) (52 Wks)

$ 3240 $ 3,374 $ 3,517 § 3,048 $ 2,351

13 13 13 14 12
833 806 865(3) 790 615
636 612 674 568 447
— — 9 8 6

6 — 115 — —
83 92 94 75 61
52 66 66 48 39
68 50 (79) 104 75
41 28 (50) 63 46
— — 34 43 9
41 28 (16) 106 56

(145)(6) 28 (16) 102(5) 56

$ 143% 098 $ (1.72) $ 222 $ 1.77
(5.03) 098  (0.55) 3.62 2.14
141 098  (1.72) 2.19 1.74
(4.95) 098  (0.55) 3.57 2.10

$ 59% 113 ¢ 174 $ 8 $ 136
812 892 974 878 689
1,505 1,820 2,027 1,953 1,328
472 639 871 699 472
548 690 662 695 459
31 17 196 133 91
1.1 1.2 1.3 1.1 1.4
8.0% 1.4%  (0.8)% 7.7%  4.6%
21.0% 43% (23)%  222%  14.0%
454% 47.3% 56.1%  48.7%  49.5%
141 141 164 160 147

91,009 91,009 90,175 89,545 89,106
223 225 229 157 N/A

33,311 33,282 33,232 36,055 N/A

Includes the results of the Pamida retail store chain acquired in July, 1998,
Includes the results of P.M. Place stores acquired in June, 2000.
Includes restructuring charge of $10.4 million related to inventory liquidation
Special charges relates to various costs incurred in connection with business acquisitions, including

process and system integration, employee retention and store conversions.

obligations.
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Includes extraordinary loss on retirement of debt of $3.8 million.

Includes cumulative effect of accounting change of $186.1 million ($6.36 per dilutive share).

The terms of the Company’s Secured Credit Facility prohibit the Company from paying dividends.

Total debt includes short-term debt, total long-term obligations and capital leases and other long-term

Total capitalization includes shareholders’ equity, total debt and non-current deferred income taxes.




ltem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resulis of
Operations

During fiscal 2000, the Company underiook two transactions that affect the comparability of its
financial statements. First, on June 16, 2000, the Company sold its remaining 64.5% interest in
ProVantage Health Services, Inc. (“ProVantage”) pursuant to a tender offer by a third party to acquire
all of the outstanding shares of ProVantage. ProVantage had previously issued 35.5% of its shares to
the pubiic in July 1889. The results of operations of ProVantage have been presented as discontinued
operations. Accordingly, previously reported financial statement information has been reclassified tc
reflect this presentation.

On January 31, 2001, the Company announced a strategic reorganization plan to close
23 ShopKo retail stores and a related distribution center serving those stores, and downsize its
corporate workforce in the first quarter of fiscal 2001. In connection with its reorganization plan, the
Company incurred a total pretax charge of $125.C million in fiscal 2000. During fiscal 2002, the
Company recorded an additional pretax charge of $6.0 millicn associated with nine remaining stores
included in the original reorganization pian that have not yet been disposed of by the Company. The
accounting associated with the reorganization plan and the restructuring charge is discussed in further
detail in the “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates” section.

Except as otherwise indicated, the following discussion is limited to continuing operations,
excluding the effects of restructuring charges.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth items from our Consolidated Statements of Operations as
percentages of consolidated net sales:

Fiscal Years Ended

Feb. 1,2003 Feb. 2,2002 Feb. 3, 2001
(52 Weeks) (52 Weeks) (53 Weeks)

Revenues:
Netsales . ........ oo i i 100.0% 100.0% 100.C%
Licensed department rentals and otherincome............ 0.4 0.4 0.4
100.4 100.4 100.4
Costs and Expenses:
Costofsales. ... i i e 74.3 76.1 75.4
Selling, general and administrative expenses ............. 19.6 i8.2 19.2
Specialcharges ........ccoviiiiiiiiii i c.3
Restructuringcharges ........c.oviiiiin i iiniiinnen.. 0.2 3.3
Depreciation and amortization expenses ................. 2.6 2.7 2.6
96.7 97.0 100.8
Earnings (loss) fromoperations . .................. ... ... ... 37 3.4 (0.4)
interestexpense—net ......... .. i i i e 1.6 1.8 1.8
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes . 2.1 1.5 (2.3)
Provision forincometaxes .......... ... .. .o i il 0.8 0.7 (0.9)
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations ................... 1.3% 0.8% 1.4)%

The Company’s reportable segments are based on the Company’s strategic business operating
units and include a ShopKo Retail segment and a Pamida Retail segment, each of which includes the
following product categories: hardlines/home, softlines and retail health/pharmacy.
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The following tables set forth items from the Company’s business segments as percentages of net
sales:

ShopKo Retail Segment

Fiscal Years Ended

Feb. 1, Feb. 2, Feb. 3,
2003 2002 2001
{52 Weeks) (52 Weeks) (53 Weeks)
Revenues:
Netsales ...t i i e e e 100.0% 100.0%  100.0%
Licensed department rentals and otherincome .............. 0.4 04 0.4

100.4 100.4 100.4
Costis and Expenses:

‘Costofsales ...l 74.3 75.3 75.3
Selling, general and administrative expenses ............... 17.7 16.6 18.2
Depreciation and amortization expenses ................... 2.4 2.5 2.5

94.4 94 .4 96.0
Earnings from operations ........... ... .. i i e 6.0% 6.0% 4.4%

Pamida Retail Segment

Fiscal Years Ended

Feb. 1, Feb. 2, Feb. 3,
2003 2002 2001
(52 Weeks) (52 Weeks) (53 Weeks)
Revenues:
Netsales .........cooi it i et ce e 100.0%  100.0%  100.0%
Licensed department rentals and otherincome .............. 0.2 0.2 0.2

100.2 100.2 100.2
Costs and Expenses:

Costofsales . ...t .. 74.2 78.5 74.6
Selling, general and administrative expenses ............... 217 20.0 20.0
Depreciation and amortization expenses ................... 2.9 3.2 2.7
98.8 101.7 97.3

Earnings (loss) from operations ............. .. ... i, 1.4% (1.5)% 2.9%

Fiscal 2002 Compared to Fiscal 2001
Continuing Operations

NET SALES
% Increase/
Fiscal Year (Decrease)
2002 2001 Total*** Comp**
ShopKoRetail ............. ... ... i, $2,456.1 $2,538.9 (3.3)% (1.1)%
Pamida Retail* ......................, 7841 8350 (6.1)% (4.8)%
Consolidated ..........ovvvniriininanan. $3,240.2 $3,373.9 (4.0)% (2.0)%

*

Changes in store sales are exclusive of layaway sales, which are immaterial.
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** Changes in comparable store sales are based upon those stores open for the entire
preceding fiscal year.

***  Shopio division reflects sales from 23 locations closed in the first quarter of 2001 which were
not replaced. Pamida division reflects sales from six closed locations, which were not
replaced.

The 1.1 percent decrease in ShopKo comparable store sales during fiscal 2002 was primarily the
result of decreased general merchandise sales and adjustments to the acdvertising calendar, partially
offset by continued strong sales in retail health services. Changes in ShopKo comparable store sales
in fiscal 2002 by category were as foliows: Retail Health, 9.0%; Hardlines, (4.7)%; and
Softlines, (3.4)%. The 4.8 percent decrease in Pamida comparable store sales reflected lower general
merchandise sales, partially offset by strong pharmacy sales. Changes in Pamida comparable store
sales in fiscal 2002 by category were as follows: Pharmacy, 17.5%; Hardlines, (8.1)%; and
Softiines, (7.8)%.

The Company believes the soft retail environment, a decline in consumer confidence and
increased competition in certain of its markets, as well as an increasingly promotional environment,
especially in the fourth quarter, negatively affecied sales. Generating sales growth is a Company
priority, which will be challenging in the current environment. The Company does not expect changes
in consumer sentiment or competitive intrusion in the near future. To address this priority, the
Company has implemented management changes and initiated store development plans to focus on
our strong Retail Health segment and to strengthen the performance in Hardlines and Softlines.
Moreover, the Company will continue to refine merchandising and adveitising techniques in this
challenging environment. There can be no assurance that such efforts will succeed.

Consolidated gross margin as a percent of net sales for fiscal 2002 was 25.7 percent compared
with 23.9 percent for fiscal 2001. Consolidated gross margin dollars increased 3.4 percent to
$833.3 million for the same period. ShopKo's gross margin as a percent of net sales was 25.7 percent
for fiscal 2002 compared with 24.7 percent for fiscal 2001. ShopKo Retail gross margins were
favorably impacted by a reduction in the LIFO reserve of $1.9 million for fiscal 2002 and $11.1 million
for fiscal 2001. ShopKo's gross margin dollars increased 0.7 percent to $630.8 million for the same
period. The improvement was a result of better merchandise margin rates, partially offset by the lower
LIFO reserve reduction.

Pamida’s gross margin as a percent of net sales was 25.8 percent for fiscal 2002 compared with
21.5 percent last year. Pamida’s gross margin dollars increased 12.7 percent to $202.5 million for the
same period. Pamida Retail gross margins were favorably impacted by a reduction in the LIFO reserve
of $1.0 million for fiscal 2002 and $5.1 million for fiscal 2001. The improvement in Pamida’s gross
margin was primarily attributable to reduced shrink expense, better merchandise margin rates and
reduced distribution expense, partially offset by lower vendor allowances and a lower LIFO reserve
reduction. The Company believes that better inventory management is benefiting gross margin in both
divisions. The improvement in margin helped to offset the sales decline, but the Company does not
expect to see the same kind of improvement in future periods.

Consolidated selling, general and administrative expenses as a percent of net sales for fiscal 2002
were 19.6 percent compared with 18.2 percent in fiscal 2001 (18.4 percent excluding ShopKo's closed
stores). ShopKo’s selling, general and administrative expenses as a percent of net sales for fiscal 2002
were 17.7 percent compared with 16.6 percent (17.0 percent excluding ShopKo's closed stores) for the
same period last year. Pamida’s selling, general and administrative expenses as a percent of net sales
were 21.7 percent for fiscal 2002 compared with 20.0 percent in fiscal 2001. The increases at both
divisions were primarily attributable to a lack of sales leverage, increases in employee incentive plans
and liability insurance costs, and one time expense obligations relating to employment contracts and
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severance agreements. Notwithstanding the margin management and tight expense controls,
operating profit has been adversely affected by the decline in sales in recent years, making continued
focus on margin and expenses a management priority.

Consolidated depreciation and amortization expenses as a percent of net sales for fiscal 2002
were 2.6 percent compared with 2.7 percent in fiscal 2001. The decrease for fiscal 2002 was
attributable to the Company no longer amortizing goodwill and to a significant reduction of assets
placed in service during 2001 compared with prior years.

Interest expense for fiscal 2002 decreased 20.5 percent to $52.3 million when compared with
fiscal 2001. The decrease was primarily due to lower debt levels. The Company will attempt to
continue to reduce its outstanding debt, but anticipates smaller reductions in future periods.

The Company’s effective tax rate for fiscal 2002 was 39.7 percent compared with 43.4 percent for
fiscal 2001. The decrease in the effective rate was primarily due to the discontinuation of goodwill
amortization as a result of our adoption of SFAS No. 142. In fiscal 2001, a substantial amount of our
goodwill amortization was non-deductible for tax purposes.

Fiscal 2001 Compared to Fiscal 2000

Fiscal 2001, which ended on February 2, 2002, covered 52 weeks, while fiscal 2000, which ended
on February 3, 2001, covered 53 weeks.

Continuing Operations

Consolidated net sales for fiscal 2001 decreased 4.1% to $3.4 billion, compared with $3.5 billion
for fiscal 2000. This decrease was due to store closures in fiscal 2001 and an additional week of sales
in the prior year.

ShopKo Retail store sales for fiscal 2001 decreased 6.3% or $172.0 million from fiscal 2000 to
$2.5 billion. This decrease is due primarily to store closures. Closed stores sales were $56.0 million
and $208.9 million in fiscal 2001 and fiscal 2000, respectively. In addition, ShopKo Retail comparable
store sales (52 weeks versus 52 weeks) increased 0.1%, compared to a 0.8% increase in the prior
year. Changes in comparable store sales in fiscal 2001 by category were as follows: Retail Health,
8.0%; Hardiines, (2.0)%; and Softlines, (3.6)%.

Pamida Retail store sales have been included in consolidated net sales since their acquisition in
July 1999 but they were not included in retail comparable store sales until fiscal 2001. Pamida Retail
store sales for the 52 weeks ended February 2, 2002 were $835.0 million and sales for the 53 weeks
ended February 3, 2001 were $806.2 million. The increase is due primarily to a full year of sales from a
net 72 new stores opened in fiscal 2000 which included 48 stores acquired in the acquisition of P.M.
Place Stores Company (“Places”). Pamida Retail comparable store sales (52 weeks versus 52 weeks)
decreased 3.0%. Changes in comparable store sales in fiscal 2001 by category were as follows: Retail
Health, 19.1%; Hardlines, (5.0)%; and Softlines, (8.2)%.

Changes in retail comparable store sales for a year are based upon those stores that were open
for the entire preceding fiscal year. Comparable store sales were adversely impacted by a difficult
economic environment as well as increased competition in certain of our markets and execution
problems at our Pamida segment.

Consolidated gross margin, as a percent of sales for fiscal 2001 was 23.9% compared with 24.6%
for fiscal 2000. ShopKo Retail gross margin as a percent of sales for both fiscal 2001 and fiscal 2000
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was 24.7%. ShopKo Retail gross margins were favorably impacted by a reduction in the LIFO reserve
of $11.1 million for fiscal 2001 and $7.2 million for fiscal 2000. The gross margin rate was negatively
impacted by an increase in third party sales in retail pharmacy (which carry lower gross margin rates),
clearance activity at reduced gross margins for stores closed in the first quarter, offset by the favorable
LIFO adjustment. The Pamida Retail gross margin as a percent of sales was 21.5% for fiscal 2001
compared to 25.4% for fiscal 2000. Pamida Retail gross margins were favorably impacted by a
reduction in the LIFO reserve of $5.1 million for fiscal 2001 and $2.6 million for fiscal 2000. The
decrease in gross margin rate is primarily attributable to increased inventory shrinkage and distribution
costs (including freight), partially offset by the favorable LIFO adjustment.

Consolidated selling, general and administrative expenses (“SG&A”), as a percent of sales, were
18.2% in fiscal 2001 compared to 19.2% in fiscal 2000. In fiscal 2001, SG&A includes a $2.7 million
impairment charge related to the closure and planned sale of Pamida’'s Bethany Distribution Center
and a $2.1 million impairment charge for an office building held for sale. ShopKo Retail selling, general
and administrative expenses were 16.6% and 18.2% of net sales in fiscal 2001 and fiscal 2000,
respectively. Comparable amounts for Pamida Retail were 20.0% for both fiscal 2001 and fiscal 2000.
The improvement in the ShopKo Retail segment and on a consolidated basis is primarily due to
savings related to corporate restructuring initiatives.

In fiscal 2000, the Company incurred special charges of $9.2 million consisting of $4.8 million for
integration and employee retention costs associated with the Pamida acquisition and $4.4 million for
store conversion costs associated with the Places acquisition. in addition, the Company recorded a
$125.0 million restructuring charge in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000 which is further described in
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates and Note C of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Net interest expense for the 52 weeks ended February 2, 2002 was $65.8 million, or 1.9% of net
sales, compared to $66.0 million, or 1.8% of net sales, for fiscal 2000.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires the appropriate application of certain
accounting policies, many of which require management to make estimates and assumptions about
future events and their impact on amounts reported in our financial statements and related notes.
Since future events and their impact cannot be determined with certainty, the actual results will
inevitably differ from our estimates. Such differences could be material to the financial statements.

Management believes its application of applicable accounting policies, and the estimates
inherently required therein, are reasonable. Management periodically reevaluates these accounting
policies and estimates in the preparation of our financial statements and makes adjustments when
facts and circumstances dictate a change. We have identified certain critical accounting policies which
are described below.

Merchandise inventory. Our merchandise inventory is carried at the lower of cost or market on a
last-in, first-out (LIFO) basis. The valuation of inventories at cost requires certain management
judgments and estimates, including among others, an assessment of any excess inventory levels,
lower of cost or market and shrinkage rates. These assumptions can have a significant impact on
current and future operating results and financial position.

Restructuring Reserve. In connection with the reorganization plan announced in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2000 to close 23 ShopKo retail stores, a distribution center, and to downsize its
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corporate workforce, the Company incurred a pre-tax charge of $125.0 million, including $67.6 million
related to inventory and property write-downs, $45.8 million related to lease termination and property
carrying costs, and $11.6 million for employee separation and other costs. The decision to close the
facilities was based on management's determination that the long term future economic cost of
continuing to operate such facilities would be more costly than closing them. The Company closed all
23 stores and the distribution center in fiscal 2001 and the inventory and fixed asset write-down
reserves were recorded in the fourth guarter of fiscal 2000. The Company utilized all of the employee
severance reserve prior to fiscal 2002. Of the 24 properties covered by the restructuring reserve, six
were disposed of in fiscal 2001, nine were disposed of in fiscal 2002 and nine remain undisposed.

The amount of the asset write-downs and reserves for lease termination and property carrying
costs are based in part on management’s estimates as to the timing for disposition of, sales proceeds
from, and disposition costs of the closed facilities. The Company'’s intention has been, and continues to
be, to relieve all obligations associated with the closed facilities. Due to continuing softness in the retail
climate in general, as well as a growing number of vacant retail properties coming on the market as the
Company’s competitors continue to restructure and downsize their operations, in the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2002 the Company utilized a real estate consulting firm to evaluate the lease obligations of the
remaining four closed stores and potential sales prices for the remaining five owned closed store
properties. Based on this evaluation, the Company lowered the estimated valuations of the properties
and believes disposition of some properties may take longer than originally estimated. As a result, the
Company took a $5.6 million pre-tax additional impairment charge on the owned properties and a
$0.4 million additional charge for future lease obligations on the leased properties in the fourth quarter
of fiscal 2002.

As of February 1, 2003, the remaining reserve for lease termination and related property carrying
costs, as well as other costs, was $15.1 million and the remaining property write-down reserve was
$16.1 million. With the adjustments described above, the Company believes the reserves are
adequate. The Company continues to negotiate lease terminations with landlords and actively market
closed stores for sale. However, due to a soft retail real estate market and the number of available
properties on the market, sales of owned stores and lease terminations have been slower than
anticipated. Accordingly, the level of reserves could prove to be inadequate such that additional
charges may be required. The Company will continue to evaluate the adequacy of the amounts
reserved as it proceeds with the disposition of the real estate and termination of the leases.

Vendor Allowances. The Company records vendor allowances and discounts in the income
statement when the purpose for which those monies were designated is fulfilled. Allowances provided
by vendors generally relate to profitability of inventory recently sold and, accordingly, are reflected as
reductions of cost of merchandise sold. Vendor allowances received for advertising or fixturing
programs reduce the Company’s expense for the related advertising or fixturing program.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESCURCES

The Company’s liquidity requirements are met primarily by cash generated from operations, with
remaining funding requirements provided by short-term and long-term borrowings. Cash provided by
operating activities was $195.0 million, $237.7 million and $35.2 million in fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. The decrease in fiscal 2002 resulted primarily from a diminished rate of inventory reduction
(a decrease of $51.2 million in fiscal 2002 versus a decrease of $100.0 million in 2001). The significant
increase in fiscal 2001 was due to the Company’s efforts to reduce inventory levels (decrease of
$100.0 milfion in fiscal 2001, versus an increase of $69.7 million in fiscal 2000). The Company finances
a significant portion of its operations through vendor financing. As of February 1, 2003, accounts
payable totaled $241.2 million. The Company currently maintains favorable terms with its vendors,
however these terms could be impacted based on the Company’s future operating performance.
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As of February 1, 2003, the Company had $248.6 million of Senior Unsecured Notes outstanding.
These Senior Unsecured Notes have maturity dates ranging from August 2003 to March 2022, with
approximately $149.0 million principal amount of Senior Unsecured Notes maturing between August
2003 and November 2004. A more detailed description of these notes is contained in Note E of the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Staternents. Subject to certain limitations set forth in our Secured
Credit Facility (described below), proceeds of the Secured Credit Facility or funds from other sources
may be used to retire or repurchase those Senior Unsecured Notes maturing during the term of the
Secured Credit Facility. The Company anticipates funding the retirement of the notes due August 2003
through a combination of operating cash flow and available borrowings under the Secured Credit
Facility. During fiscal 2002, the Company repurchased $23.7 million in principal amount of the
outstanding Senior Unsecured Notes, $10.8 million due in 2003 and $12.9 million due in 2004.
Payments due under the Senior Unsecured Notes could be accelerated in the event the Company
defaults on any obligation in excess of $25 million.

In addition {o the Senior Unsecured Notes, the Company had $40.0 million outstanding under its
Secured Credit Facility as of the end of fiscal 2002 compared to $147.8 million outstanding as of the
end of fiscal 2001. On March 12, 2001, the Company entered into a $600.0 million senior secured
revolving credit and term loan facility ("Secured Credit Facility”), which is secured by the Company’s
inventory and accounts receivable. The Secured Credit Facility provided for revolving credit borrowings
of up to $500.0 million and a term loan of $100.0 million, both of which bear interest at the bank’s base
rate plus a margin of 0.0% to 0.5% or the Eurodollar rate plus a margin of 2.0% to 2.5%, depending on
borrowing availability under the facility and the Company’s operating cash flow. On December 10,
2002, the Company voluntarily terminated the term loan portion of the Secured Credit Facility, reducing
the overall commitment under the facility from $600.0 million to $500.0 miltion.

The Secured Credit Facility terminates March 12, 2004, but the facility may be exiended for an
additional year at the Company’s option subject to certain conditions. The Secured Credit Facility
prohibits the payment of dividends, limits new indebtedness, repurchases of common stock and capital
expenditures, and requires the Company to meet financial performance covenants relating to
borrowing availability and minimum operating cash flows. The consequences of failing to comply with
the various covenants and requirements range from increasing the interest rate, to restrictions on cash
management, to default and acceleration of the debt. The indebtedness under the Secured Credit
Facility can be declared immediately due and payable in the event other Company debt in excess of
$10 million is accelerated. During fiscal 2002 and 2001 and giving effect to the write-down of goodwill
pursuant to SFAS No. 142, the Company was in compliance with all covenants in the Secured Credit
Facility.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company closed on a $50.0 million private placement
mortgage financing. The loan has a term of 10 years at an interest rate of 11 percent and is secured by
13 ShopKo stores and one distribution center. Principal payments are based on a 25-year amortization
schedule with a balloon payment due March 2012. Prepayments are permitted subject to certain
penalties. The loan was used to retire five lease liabilities associated with closed stores controlled by
affiliates of the lender, to provide additional liquidity, and to add a layer of longer term debt to the
Company’s capital structure.
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The following schedule sets forth the Company's contractual obligations and commercial
commitments as of February 1, 2003;

Payments Due by Period

Less than 4-5 After
Contractual Obligations Total 1 year 2 - 3 years years 5 years
{in thousands)
Long-TermDebt ......... ... .. ... .. ... $303,675 $ 90,024 $ 61,489 § 5542 $146,620
Capital Lease Obligations(1) .............. 200,224 16,380 31,297 27,423 125,114
Operatingleases(2) ..................... 184,901 20,005 33,916 30,459 100,521
Total Contractual Cash Obligations . ........ $688,800 $126,419 $126,702 $63,424 $372,255

(1) Capital lease obligations represent the total minimum future obligations inclusive of interest.
(2) Operating leases are the aggregate future payments for operating leases as of February 1, 2003,
including closed stores.

The Company believes that the Secured Credit Facility and expected cash from operations,
together with continued favorable vendor credit terms, will provide sufficient liquidity 1o finance
continuing operations, including planned capital expenditures, for fiscal 2003. However, if the
Company’s operating results were to deteriorate significantly for whatever reason, or if the Company
were to require significant additional capital for unexpected events, the Company could suffer liquidity
problems, which would materially adversely affect its results of operations and financial condition.
Furthermore, as described above, the Company has a significant amount of debt obligations maturing
in the period from August 2003 to November 2004. While the Company believes it will have sufficient
liquidity to retire these debt obligations as they mature, there can be no assurance that the Company
will be able to retire or refinance these obligations. If the Company cannot retire or refinance these
obligations as they mature, the Company's resuits of operations and financial condition will be
materially adversely affected.

Capital Expenditures and Acquisitions

The Company spent $30.9 million on capital expenditures in fiscal 2002, compared to $17.2 million
in fiscal 2001 and $196.2 million in fiscal 2000. The following table sets forth the compoenents of capital
expenditures and acquisitions (in millions):

Fiscal Years Ended

Feb. 1, Feb. 2, Feb. 3,
2003 2002 2001
(52 Weeks) (52 Weeks) (53 Weeks)

Capital Expenditures

NeW StOres ... .. i e $ 0.0 $ 098 $ 68.6

Remodeling and refixturing . .......... ... .. i 18.7 3.1 47.6

Distributioncenters .............. e e e 0.3 2.8 57.8
Management information and point-of-sale equipment and

SYS EMS . L e 11.3 5.8 20.9

Other . o 0.6 4.6 1.3

Total .. $30.9 $17.2 $196.2

ACQUISIIONS ..t e i e $ 21

The Company’s projected capital expenditures for fiscal 2003 are $70.0 to $80.0 million, which will
be primarily focused on store remodels (including new merchandise initiatives), general maintenance
(including technology enhancements), pharmacy business expansion and initial development for a
2004 new store opening program.
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inflation

Inflation has and is expected to have only a minor effect on the results of the Company’s
operations and internal and external sources of liquidity.

Recent Pronouncements

In January 2003, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF"), issued EITF issue No. 02-16,
“Accounting By a Customer (Including a Reseller) for Certain Consideration Received From a Vendor”,
applicable to fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2002. Issue No. 02-16 provides accounting
guidance on how a customer, including a reseller, should characterize consideration received from a
vendor and when to recognize and how to measure that consideration in its income statement. The
Company has not completed the process of evaluating the impact of EITF Issue 02-16. However, the
Company does not expect that its adoption in fiscal 2003 will have a material impact on its
consolidated financial statements, but it may change the classification of some consideration received
from vendors within the Consolidated Staterments of Operations.

In December 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation
Transition and Disclosure”. SFAS No. 148 amends SFAS No. 123 to provide alternative methods of
transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based
employee compensation. It amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 to require prominent
disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-
based employee compensation and the sffect of the method used on reported resulis. As of
February 1, 2003, the Company has not elected to expense stock options. The potential impact on
consalidated financial statements of expensing of stock options is disclosed in Note A of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

in November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. (“FIN") 45, “Guarantor's Accounting
and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of
Others”. FIN 45 requires that guarantors record the fair value of its obligations under certain guaranties
and requires disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements about
its obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued. The recognition and initial measurement
provisions of this Interpretation are applicable on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified
after December 31, 2002, irrespective of the guarantor’s fiscal year-end. The disclosure requirements
are effective for interim and annual financial statements ending after December 15, 2002. The
Company does not expect the adoption of this FASB Interpretation to have a material impact on its
consolidated financial statements.

In June 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated With Exit or Disposal
Activities”. SFAS No. 146 nullifies EITF Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee
Termination Benefits and Cther Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a
Restructuring)”. SFAS No. 146 requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal
activity be recognized when the iiability is incurred. Therefore, SFAS No. 146 eliminates the definition
and requirements for recognition of exit costs in EITF No. 94-3. The provisions of SFAS No. 146 are
effective for exit or disposal activities that are initiated afier December 31, 2002. The Company does
not expect the adoption of this statement to have a material impact on its consolidated financial
statements,

The Company adopted SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, effective
February 3, 2002. Under SFAS No. 142, the Company no longer amoriizes goodwiill and other
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intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. Instead, the carrying value is evaluated for impairment on
an annual basis. During fiscal 2002, based on the analysis of an independent appraiser, the Company
completed its assessment of the impairment of goodwill of the Pamida Retail segment in accordance
with the guidelines provided by SFAS No. 142. The fair value of the Pamida Retail segment was
determined by the appraiser based on a combination of a discounted cash flow analysis and an
analysis of market prices of other retail companies. The fair values of the -underlying assets and
liabilities were determined using standard valuation practices, including income capitalization, sales
comparisons, market rent analysis, relief from royalty and replacement cost. As a result of this
assessment, the Company recorded a charge of $186.1 million related to the write down of all goodwill
recorded on the Company’s balance sheet, all of which related to the Pamida Retail segment. The
Company has received a report from an independent appraiser containing an analysis of intangible
assets with indefinite lives, which primarily consist of a trademark associated with the Pamida Retail
segment. No impairment was recorded as a result of this assessment.

item 7a. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about fiarket Risk

Because of the level of variable interest rate debt in the Company’s capital structure, the Company
is exposed to earnings or cash flow fluctuations due to changes in interest rates. At February 1, 2003,
the Company had $40.0 million of variable rate debt outstanding with a weighted average interest rate
of 3.54%. This debt exposes the Company to changes in interest expense brought about by changes in
interest rates. During fiscal 2002, the monthly average amount borrowed under the variable rate credit
facilities was approximately $140.1 million, and the weighted average interest rate was 4.07%. If the
weighted average interest rate were to increase by 10.0% for fiscal 2002, net income would have
decreased by approximately $0.3 million.

At February 1, 2003, the Company had fixed-rate iong-term debt totaling $303.7 million. As these
instruments are fixed-rate, they do not expose the Company to the possibility of earnings loss or gain
due to changes in market interest rates. In general, fluctuation in the market value of these instruments
based on fluctuation in interest rates would impact the Company’'s earnings and cash flows only if the
Company were to reacquire all or a portion of these instruments prior to their maturity. Management
continually monitors the interest rate environment with the objective of lowering borrowing costs
without subjecting the Company to excessive exposure to fluctuating interest rates.

item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule, together with the
independent auditors’ report, are included on pages 35 to 55 and are incorporated by reference herein.

item 9. Charnges in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial

Disclosure

None.
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PART if§

tem 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information called for by ltem 10, as to Directors of the Registrant and the information
required by items 401 and 405 of Regulation S-K, is incorporated herein by reference to the
Registrant’'s definitive Proxy Statement dated April 28, 2003 filed with the Securities and Exchange
-Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A in connection with the Registrant’s 2003 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders. Information regarding executive officers is included in Part | above.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information called for by Item 11 is incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant’s
definitive Proxy Statement dated April 28, 2003 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
pursuant to Regulation 14A in connection with the Registrant’s 2003 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The information called for by ltem 12 is incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant’s
definitive Proxy Statement dated April 28, 2003 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
pursuant to Regulation 14A in connection with the Registrant’s 2003 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

ltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information called for by ltem 13 is incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant’s
definitive Proxy Statement dated April 28, 2003 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
pursuant to Regulation 14A in connection with the Registrant’s 2003 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
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item 14. Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains a set of disclosure controls and procedures designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by us in the reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the
time periods specified by the SEC. Within the 90 days prior to the date of filing this report, the
Company carried out an evaluation, under the supetrvision and with the participation of the Company’s
Disclosure Committee and the Company’s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and the
Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-14 promulgated under the Exchange Act. Based upon
that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer concluded that the
Company’'s disclosure controls and procedures are effective in timely alerting them to material
information relating to the Company required o be included in the Company’s periodic SEC filings.
Subsequent to the date of that evaluation, there have been no significant changes in the Company’s
internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls, nor were any
corrective actions required with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

ltem 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K
(a) Documents filed as part of this report:
1. Consolidated Financial Statements;

See “Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule” on
page 34, the Independent Auditors’ Report on page 35 and the Consolidated Financial
Statements on pages 36 to 54, all of which are incorporated herein by reference.

2. Financial Statement Schedule:

See “Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule” on
page 34 and the Financial Statement Schedule on page 55, all of which are incorporated
herein by reference.

3. Exhibits:
See “Exhibit Index” on pages 59 to 62, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Pursuant to Regulation S-K, ltem 601(b) (4) (iii}, the Registrant hereby agrees to furnish to the
Commission, upon request, a copy of each instrument and agreement with respect to long-
term debt of the Registrant and its consolidated subsidiaries which does not exceed
10 percent of the total assets of the Registrant and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis.

(b} Reports on Form 8-K:

The Registrant filed Current Reports on Form 8-K with respect to the fourth fiscal quarter of fiscal
2002 as follows:

1. Form 8-K dated January 7, 2003, with respect to Item 5. Other Events, regarding the
appointment of Richard A. Zona to its board of directors effective January 6, 2003.

33




INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

Page
Index to Consolidated Financial Statements of ShopKo Stores, Inc. and Subsidiaries
independent Auditors’ Report . .. .. . i e i 35
Consolidated Statements of Operations for each of the three years in the period ended ‘
Februarny 1, 2008 .. ... i e e e e e e 36
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of February 1, 2003 and February 2,2002 ............ 37
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period ended
February 1, 2003 .. ... i e e e 38
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for each of the three years in the period
ended February 1, 2003 .. .. ... o i e e e 38
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements .......... ... .. . i i iiiiinnn. 40-54
index to Financial Statement Schedule
Schedule li-Valuation and Qualifying Accounts . ..............ciiiriiinninnenan.. 55

All other schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or not required.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
ShopKo Stores, Inc.:

~ We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of ShopKo Stores, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
February 1, 2003 and February 2, 2002, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year (52 weeks) ended February 1, 2003, the year (52
weeks) ended February 2, 2002 and the year (53 weeks) ended February 3, 2001. Our audits also
included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at ltem 15. These financial statements and
financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on the financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of ShopKo Stores, Inc. and subsidiaries as of February 1, 2003 and February 2,
2002, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the vear (52 weeks) ended February
1, 2003, the vear (52 weeks) ended February 2, 2002 and the year (53 weeks) ended February 3,
2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the
information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note A to the consolidated financial statements, effective February 3, 2002, the
Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets.”

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Deloitte & Touche LLP

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
March 12, 2003
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SHOPKO STORES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
{In thousands, except per share data)

February 1, February 2, February 3,
2003 2002 2001
(52 Weeks) (52 Weeks) {53 Weeks)
Revenues:
Netsales ..o e e i e $3,240,187 $3,373,935 $3,517,112
Licensed department rentals and other income ......... 12,622 13,054 13,423
3,252,809 3,386,989 3,530,535
Costs and Expenses:
Cost of sales, including restructuring charge of $10,447 in
fiscal 2000 ... ... e 2,406,887 2,567,800 2,652,155
Selling, general and administrative expenses .......... 635,909 611,930 673,542
Specialcharges ...........oiiiiiiiniiiiiiiannn.. 0 v 9,224
Restructuringecharge ..........ccoiiiiiiinninnnn, 6,030 e 114,585
Depreciation and amortization expenses .............. 83,337 91,862 94,079
3,132,163 3,271,392 3,543,585
Earnings (loss) from operations ......................... 120,646 115,597 (13,050)
Interestexpense—net ........ ... .. i i i i 52,264 65,765 65,961
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before income
£ 0= P 68,382 49,832 (79,011)
Provision (credit) forincometaxes ....................... 27,149 21,615 (29,036)
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations ................ 41,233 28,217 (49,975)
Discontinued operations:
Earnings from discontinued operations, net of income taxes of
R~ 0 0 0 1,567
Gain on sale of discontinued business, net of income taxes of
B14,406 .. .. e e 0 0 32,590
Earnings (loss) before accountingchange ................. 41,233 28,217 (15,818)
Cumulative effect of accountingchange . .................. (186,052) o 0
Netearnings (I0SS) . ...cov ittt i e e e $ (144819 $ 28,217 $ (15,818)
Earnings (loss) per share of common stock:
Basic:
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations ............ $ 143 $ 098 §$ (1.72)
Earnings from discontinued operations ................ 0 o 0.05
Gain on sale of discontinued business ................ 0 0 1.12
Cumulative effect of accountingchange ............... (6.46) 0 0
Neteamings (I0SS) . ...ov v it et $ (5.03) $ 098 $ (0.55)
Diluted:
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations ............ $ 141 $ 098 $ (1.72)
Earnings from discontinued operations .. .............. 0 0 0.05
Gain on sale of discontinued business ................ 0 0 .12
Cumulative effect of accountingchange ............... (6.35) 0 0
Neteamings (I0SS) . ... vv it i i i et e e $ (4.85) $ 098 $ (0.55)
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding—
DaSIC L e e e e s 28,791 28,899 29,014
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding—
diluted . ... 29,218 28,838 29,014

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SHOPKO STORES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands)

February 1, February 2,

2003 2002
Assets
Current assets:
Cashandcashequivalents ................cciiiiiiineninnn.. $ 33753 $ 30,169
Receivables, less allowance for losses of $2,611 and $3,220,

TESPECHIVEIY . e e e 49,509 48,738
Merchandise inventories . ..o it e 562,731 613,911
Othercurrentassets ...ttt 13,745 15,840

Totalcurrentassets ...ttt e 659,738 708,658
Other assets and deferredcharges ......... ...t iii o, 12,570 11,185
Intangible assets—net .......... . e 20,475 22,119
GoodWIll . . e e e e 0 186,052
Property and equipment—net ....... ... .. ... .. .. 812,184 892,022
Ot @SS . ittt e e e e $1,504,967 $1,820,036
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Cuirent liabilities:

Shorttermdebt . ... ... . i e $ 40,022 $ 47,808

Accounts payable—trade ......... ... i e e 241,166 255,630

Accrued compensationand relatedtaxes ............ ... 44 957 45,145

Deferred taxes and other accrued liabilities ....................... - 128,809 143,906

Accrued income and othertaxes ..... ... oo i it i in. 49,998 23,249

Current portion of long-term obligations andleases ................. 95,554 79,942

Totalcurrent liabilities ........... ... ... ... . 600,506 595,680

Long-term obligations and leases, less currentportions ................. 319,577 505,467
Other long-term obligations .......... .. oot 16,744 6,199
Deferredincometaxes ...ttt e i 19,769 22,642
Shareholders’ equity:

Preferred stock; noneoutstanding ..................... ... ..., 0 0

Common stock; shares issued, 30,974 at February 1, 2003 and 30,628

atFebruary 2,2002 ... ... e e e 310 306
Additional paid-incapital ........... ... .. . 389,177 384,745
Retained earnings . ...t i e 199,134 345,247
Less treasury stock—at cost; 1,904 shares ....................... (40,250) (40,250)

Total shareholders’ equity ....... ... ..., 548,371 690,048
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ................. ... ... ... $1,504,967 $1,820,036

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SHOPKO STORES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

February 1, February2, Februarys3,
2063 2002 2001
{52 Weeks) (52 Weeks) (53 Weeks)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations ............... $ 41,233 $ 28,217 §$ (48,975)
Adjustmenits to reconcile earnings (loss) to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization . ..................... 83,337 91,662 94,079
Provision for losses on receivables, net of recoveries ... 578 384 618
(Gain) / Loss on the sale of property and equipment . . . . 2,188 (974) (3086}
Restructuringcharge ....... ... . i, 6,030 0 125,032
Impairmentcharges ...........ccoviiniiiiiinanan. 147 4,825 c
Deferredincometaxes ..................coinun... 7,079 23,425 (16,343)
Change in assets and liabilities (excluding effects of
business acquisitions):
Receivables ........ ... ... .. iiiiiiiiiannn, (1,349) 8,448 (1,739}
Merchandise inventories . ...................... 51,180 100,014 (69,657)
Othercurrentassets ........... ..., 2,085 (2,630) 53
Other assets and intangibles ................... 623 11,054 (15,393)
Accountspayable ......... ... ... oL, (14,464) (22,545) (51,196)
Accrued liabilities ... .......... o e 16,310 (4,170) 23,054
Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing
OPEIatIONS . o e e 184,987 237,721 35,227
Net cash flows from discontinued operations ................. C 0 (28,061}
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payments for property and equipment ................... (30,880) (17,188) (196,247)
Proceeds from the sale of property and equipment .. ....... 11,876 14,857 4,500
Proceeds from the sale of discontinued business .......... C 0 143,381
Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired .. ............. 0] 6] (2,070}
Net cash used in investing activities ... ...................... (18,004) (2,341)  (50,435)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net proceeds from debt borrowings ..................... 37,471 147,808 117,000
Net payments of debt and capital lease obligations ........ (210,316) (380,180) (58,582)
Debtissuancecosts ........... .ot (1,380) (8,163) (924)
Change in common stock from stock options .. ............ 1,826 0 2,892
Purchase of treasury stock .......... ... ... . il : 0 0 (20,222)
Net cash provided by / (used in) financing activities ............ (172,399) (240,545) 40,164
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalenis ........ 3,584 (5,165) (3,106)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginningofyear ............... 30,169 35,334 38,440
Cash and cash equivalents atendofyear.................... $ 33,753 $ 30,169 $ 35,334
Supplemental cash flow information:
Noncash investing and financial activities—
Capital lease obligations incurred ................... $ 18 $ 78 $ 42,364
Capital lease obligations terminated ................. $ 11,000 $ 0% 0
Cash paid (refunds received) during the period for:
Interest .. ... o i $ 49,661 $ 65258 $ 66,147
INCOME IAXES . . .ot i ittt it et et e $ (4410) $ 3,867 $ 24,473

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SHOPKO STORES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Balances at January 29,
2000 ...
Netloss ................
Sale of common stock
under option plans.. . .. ..
Income tax benefit related
to stock options ........
Restricted stock
expense ..............
Purchase of treasury
stock.................

Balances at February 3,
2001 ...

Netearnings ............

Issuance of restricted

Restricted stock expense ..

Balances at February 2,
2002 ... e
Netloss ................
Sale of common stock
under option plans .. . .. ..
Income tax benefit related
to stock options ........
Issuance of restricted

Restricted stock
expense ..............

Balances at February 1,
2003 ... . e

{In thousands)

Common Stock Additionat Treasury Stock Totai
—————— Paid-in Retained
Shares Amocunt Capital Earnings Shares Amount Shares Amount

30,400 $304 $381,354 $ 332,872 (816)$(20,028) 29,584 $694,502

(15,818) (15,818)

203 2 2,890 203 2,892
319 319

74 74

(1,088) (20,222) (1,088) (20,222)

30,603 306 384,563 317,128 (1,904) (40,250)28,699 661,747

28,217 28,217
25 182 (182) 25 0
84 84

30,628 306 384,745 345,247 (1,904) (40,250)28,724 690,048

(144,819) (144,819)
229 3 1,823 229 1,826
774 774

117 1 1,835  (1,836) 117 0
542 542

30,974 $310 $389,177 $ 199,134 (1,904) $(40,250) 29,070 $548,371

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SHOPKO STORES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organization and Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of ShopKo Stores, Inc. and its majority
owned subsidiaries (“ShopKo” or the “Company”). All significant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated.

ShopKo is engaged in the business of providing general merchandise and retail health services
through its two retail store chains. ShopKo Retail stores are operated in the Midwest, Western
Mountain and Pacific Northwest states. Pamida, Inc. (“Pamida”) Retail stores are operated in the
Midwest, North Central and Rocky Mountain states.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company records all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less
as cash equivalents.

Receivables

Receivables consist of amounts collectible from third party pharmacy insurance carriers; from
retail store customers for optical and pharmacy purchases; and from merchandise vendors for
promotional and advertising allowances. Substantially all amounts are expected o be collected within
one year.

Merchandise Inventories

Merchandise inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost, which includes certain
distribution and transportation costs, is determined through use of the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method
for substantially all inventories. If the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method had been used to determine cost
of inventories, the Company’s inventcries would have been higher by approximately $2.9 million at
February 2, 2002. There was no difference between the LIFO and FIFO cost methods at February 1,
2003.

Property and Equipment—Net

Property and equipment are carried at cost. The cost of buildings and equipment is depreciated
over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Buildings and certain equipment (principally computer
and retail store equipment) are depreciated using the straight-line method. Remaining properties are
depreciated on an accelerated basis. Useful lives generally assigned are: buildings-25 to 50 years;
retail store equipment-8 to 10 years; warehouse, transportation and other equipment-3 to 10 years.
Costs of leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of the lease or the estimated useful life
of the asset, whichever is shorter, using the straight-line method. Property under capital leases is
amortized over the related lease term using the straight-line method.

40




The components of property and equipment are:

Feb. 1, Feb. 2,
2003 2002

{in thousands)

Property and equipment at cost:

Land . ... $ 125,505 $ 128,347
Buildings ........ ..o i i 667,783 675,079
Equipment ........ ... . 551,325 538,231
Leasehold improvements ....................... 72,482 71,487
Property under construction ..................... 3,057 1,133
Property under capitalleases .. .................. 132,711 142,932

1,652,863 1,557,219

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization:

Property and equipment ........................ 677,487 611,637
Property under capitalleases .. .................. 46,063 40,216
Less reserve for impairment on assets to be disposed . .. 17,129 13,344
Net property and equipment ........... e e $ 812,184 $ 892,022

Goodwill and Intangible Assets—Net

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, as discussed
below, goodwill and trademarks were amortized using the straight-line method over 15 to 40 years.
The Company’s intangible assets are composed of assets with finite and indefinite lives. Intangible
assets with finite lives are amontized using the straight-line method. Underwriting and issuance costs of
long-term obligations are amortized over the term of the obligations. Customer lists are generally
amortized over 15 years.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 142 effective February 3, 2002. Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill
and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are no longer amortized, but instead are
reviewed for impairment and any excess in carrying value over the estimated fair value is charged to
results of operations.

The folloWing table summarizes goodwill and intangible asseis by major asset class as of
February 1, 2003 and February 2, 2002:

February 1, 2003 February 2, 2002

Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount  Amortization Amount Amortization

{In thousands)

Goodwill (Pamida retail segment) . ................ $ $ $198,596  $(12,644)
Intangible assets with indefinite lives:

Trademark . ......viiiit i i i $780 $ (506) $ 7,800 $ (506)
Intangible assets with finite lives:

Debtissuance costs ............cciivunvennn $10,609 $ (6,071) $ 11,403 $ (4,693)

Customer listsandother* ................... 16,735 (8,092) 14,479 (6,364)

$27,344  $(14,163) $ 25,882 $(11,057)

* Customer lists and other is principally composed of lists of prescription drug customers that the
Company has acquired through its retail health operations.
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Amortization expense was $5.3 million and $9.3 million for fiscal 2002 and 2001, respectively.
Estimated fiscal year amortization expense will be as follows: 2003 - $3.6 million; 2004 - $1.4 million;
2005 - $1.2 million; 2006 - $1.0 million; 2007 - $0.9 million.

Impairment of Long Lived Assels

The Company evaluates whether events and circumstances have occurred that indicate the
remaining estimated useful lives of long-lived assets may warrant revision or that the remaining
balance of an asset may not be recoverable. The measurement of possible impairment is based on the
ability to recover the balance of assets from expected future operating cash flows on an undiscounted
basis. Impairment losses, if any, would be measured by comparing the carrying amount of the asset to
its fair value, determined based on appraised values or as the present value of the cash flows using
discounted rates that reflect the inherent risks of the underlying business. In the fourth quarter of fiscal
2001, the Company recorded in selling, general and administrative expense, an impairment charge of
$2.7 million asscciated with the decision to close the Bethany Distribution Center in the first quarter of
fiscal 2002, as well as a charge of $2.1 million for the impairment of an office building held for sale.
Both of the facilities were disposed in the first quarter of fiscal 2002. in the opinion of management,
except for assets identified herein and as disclosed in Note C of the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, no such impairment existed as of February 1, 2003 or February 2, 2002.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues from the Company’s retail stores are recognized at the time customers take possession
of merchandise purchased or services are rendered, net of estimated returns, which are based on
historical experience. Revenues from licensed departments are recorded at the net amounts to be
received from licensees.

Vendor Allowances

The Company records vendor allowances and discounts in the income statement when the
purpose for which those monies were designated is fulfilled. Allowances provided by vendors generally
relate to profitability of inventory recently sold and, accordingly, are reflected as reductions of cost of
merchandise sold. Vendor allowances received for advertising or fixturing programs reduce the
Company’s expense for the related advertising or fixturing program.

Advertising

The Company expenses advertising costs, net of vendor reimbursements, in the period incurred.
Advertising expense was $26.0 million, $18.3 million and $31.1 million in fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively.

Stock-based Employee Compensation Plans

At February 1, 2003, the Company has four stock-based employee compensation plans, which are
described more fully in Note G. The Company accounts for those plans under the recognition and
measurement principles of APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and
related Interpretations. No stock-based employee compensation cost is reflected in results of
operations for stock option awards, as all options granted under those plans had an exercise price
equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. The following table
illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if the Company had applied the fair value
recognition provisions of FASB Statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” to
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stock-based employee compensation. The expense associated with restricted stock awards has not
been separately identified in the following table, as the expense would be the same under either

standard.

Year Ended
February 1, February 2, February 3,
2003 2002 2001
Net earnings (loss)asreported ..............c.iviiiininnnn, $(144,819) $28,217 $(15,818)
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense
determined under fair value method for all option awards, net
ofrelatedtaxeffects ........... ... .. ... ... (1,340)  (1,253) (1,081)
Proformanetearnings (JoSS) ... $(146,159) $26,964 $(16,899)
Net Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic—asreported ........... ... .. i $ (503 $ 098 $ (0.55)
Basic—proforma ........... ... . .. $ (508 $ 094 $ (0.59)
Diluted—asreported ...........ciiiiiiiiii i $ (495 $ 098 §$ (0.55)
Diluted—proforma....... ... ... it $ (5.00) $ 096 $ (0.59)

Pre-opening Costs
The Company expenses pre-opening costs of retail stores as incurred.

Special Charges

The Company incurs various costs in connection with business acquisitions related to process and
systems integration, employee retention programs, and store conversions. These costs are classified
as special charges in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. In fiscal 2000, the
Company incurred $4.8 million of integration and employee retention costs associated with the Pamida
acquisition and $4.4 million of store conversion costs associated with the Places acquisition.

Net Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share

Basic net earnings (loss) per common share is computed by dividing net earnings (loss) by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted net earnings (loss) per common
share is computed by dividing net earnings by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding increased by the number of dilutive potential common shares based on the treasury stock
method. During fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, options to purchase 1,654,646 shares, 2,071,525 shares
and 2,155,333 shares, respectively, were excluded from the diluted earnings per share computation as
the effects of such options wouid have been anti-dilutive.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Discontinued QOperations

On July 19, 1999, ProVantage Health Services, Inc. (“ProVantage”), a then wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, completed an initial public offering of its common shares. As a result of this
transaction, the Company’s ownership interest in ProVantage was reduced to 64.5%. ProVantage
provided health benefit management services, pharmacy mail services, vision benefit management
services and health information technology and clinical support services.
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On June 16, 2000, the Company sold its remaining interest in ProVantage pursuant to a tender
offer by a third party to acquire all of the outstanding shares of ProVantage, for proceeds of
approximately $143.4 million, resulting in a gain of $32.6 million, net of income taxes.

The results of operations of ProVantage have been presented as discontinued operations. Net
sales of ProVantage for the 20 weeks ended June 17, 2000 were $397.9 million.

Litigation

In the normal course of business, the Company has been named as a defendant in various
lawsuits. Some of these lawsulits involve claims for substantial amounts. Although the ultimate outcome
of these lawsuits cannot be ascertained at this time, it is the opinion of management, after consultation
with counsel, that the resolution of such suits will not have a material adverse effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Company.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year presentation.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2003, the Emerging !ssues Task Force (“EITF”), issued EITF lIssue No. 02-16,
“Accounting By a Customer (including a Reseller) for Certain Consideration Received From a Vendor”,
applicable to fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2002. Issue No. 02-16 provides accounting
guidance on how a customer, including a reseller, should characterize consideration received from a
vendor and when to recognize and how o measure that consideration in its income statement. The
Company has not completed the process of evaluating the impact of EITF Issue 02-16. However, the
Company does not expect that its adoption in fiscal 2003 will have a material impact on its
consolidated financial statements, but it may change the classification of some consideration received
from vendors within the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

In December 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation
Transition and Disclosure”. SFAS No. 148 amends SFAS No. 123 to provide alternative methods of
transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based
employee compensation. |t amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 to require prominent
disciosures in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of accounting for
stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reporied results. As of
February 1, 2003, the Company has not elected to expense stock options. The potential impact on
consolidated financial statements of expensing of stock options is disclosed in a preceding section of
Note A.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB interpretation No. (“FIN") 45, “Guarantor's Accounting
and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of indebtedness of
Others”. FIN 45 requires that guarantors record the fair value of its obligations under certain
guarantees and requires disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial
statements about its obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued. The recognition and initial
measurement provisions of this Interpretation are applicable on a prospective basis to guarantees
issued or modified after December 31, 2002, irrespective of the guarantor’s fiscal year-end. The
disclosure requirements are effective for interim and annual financial statements ending after
December 15, 2002. The Company does not expect the adoption of this FASB Interpretation to have a
material impact on its consolidated financial statements.
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. In June 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated With Exit or Disposal Activities”. SFAS
No. 146 nullifies EITF Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits
and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (Including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring)”. SFAS No. 146
requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity be recognized when the
liability is incurred. Therefore, SFAS No. 146 eliminates the definition and requirements for recognition of
exit costs in EITF No. 94-3. The provisions of SFAS No. 146 are effective for exit or disposal activities
that are initiated after December 31, 2002. The Company does not expect the adoption of this statement
to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, effective
February 3, 2002. Under SFAS No. 142, the Company no longer amortizes goodwill and other
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. Instead, the carrying value is evaluated for impairment on
an annual basis. During fiscal 2002, based on the analysis of an independent appraiser, the Company
completed its assessment of the impairment of goodwill of the Pamida Retail segment in accordance
with the guidelines provided by SFAS No. 142. The fair value of the Pamida Retail segment was
determined by the appraiser based on a combination of a discounted cash flow analysis and an
analysis of market prices of other retail companies. The fair values of the underlying assets and
liabilities were determined using standard valuation practices, including income capitalization, sales
comparisons, market rent analysis, relief from royalty and replacement cost. As a result of this
assessment, the Company recorded a charge of $186.1 million related to the write down of all goodwill
recorded on the Company’s balance sheet, all of which related to the Pamida Retail segment. The
Company has received a report from an independent appraiser containing an analysis of intangible
assets with indefinite lives, which primarily consist of a trademark associated with the Pamida Retail
segment. No impairment was recorded as a result of this assessment.

The results for periods prior to adoption of SFAS No. 142 have not been restated. The following
table reflects consolidated results from operations for fiscal 2001 and 2000 as if the adoption of
SFAS No. 142 had occurred on January 30, 2000.

Fiscal Years Ended

February 2, February 3,
2002 2001

(in thousands, except per share data)

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations:
Reported earnings (loss) before accounting

change . ... v .$28,217 $(49,975)
Goodwill and trademark amortization, netoftax ...... 5,082 5,056
Proforma .........c.cco i $33,299 $(44,919)

Basic earnings (loss) per share from continuing operations:
Earnings (loss) before accounting change:

Asreported . ... $ 098 $ (1.72)
Goodwill and trademark amortization, net oftax ...... 0.18 0.17
Proforma ......... .. o i $ 1.16 $ (1.55)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share from continuing

operations:

Earnings (loss) before accounting change:
Asreported ........ ... ... . .. $ 098 $ (1.72)
Goodwill and trademark amortization, netoftax ...... 0.18 0.17
Proforma ... e $ 1.i6 $ (1.55)
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Acquisition

Cn June 29, 2000, the Company acquired all of the outstanding stock of P.M. Place Stores
(“Places”) for $2.1 million in cash and approximately $28.8 million in assumed debt and accrued
liabilities. Places was headquartered in Bethany, Missouri and operated discount stores in Missouri,
lowa, Kansas and lllinois. The pro forma effect of this acquisition was not material to the Company’s
consolidated statements of operations.

C. Restructuring Reserve

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000, the Company announced a strategic reorganization plan to
close 23 ShopKo retail stores, a distribution center, and to downsize its corporate workforce. In
connection with the reorganization plan, the Company incurred a pre-tax charge of $125.0 million,
including $67.6 million related to inventory and property write-downs, $45.8 million related to lease
termination and property carrying costs, and $11.6 million for employee separation and other costs.
The inventory and fixed asset write-down reserves were recorded in the fourth quaiter of fiscal 2000.
All stores and the distribution center were closed and approximately 2,500 employees were terminated
in the first quarter of fiscal 2001. The Company utilized all of the employee severance reserve prior to
fiscal 2002. For balance sheet reporting, the portion of the reserve for the lease termination, property
carrying and other costs to be paid in the next 12 months is reported in accrued expenses as a current
liability and the remainder ($14.0 million) is recorded in other long-term obligations at February 1,
2003.

During fiscal 2002, eight leases were terminated and one owned property was sold. There are
nine remaining properties covered by the restructuring reserve. Due to continuing softness in the retail
climate in general, as well as a growing number of vacant retail properties coming on the market as the
Company’'s competitors continue to restructure and downsize their operations, in the fourth quarter of
2002, the Company utilized a real estate consulting firm to evaluate the lease obligations of the
remaining four closed stores and potential sales prices for the five closed store properties that are
owned by the Company. Based on this evaluation, the Company lowered the estimated valuations of
the properties and believes disposition of some properties may take longer than originally estimated.
As a result, the Company recorded a $5.6 million pre-tax additional impairment charge on the owned
properties and a $0.4 million additional charge for future lease obligations on the leased properties.

As of February 1, 2003, the remaining reserve for lease terminations and related property carrying
costs, as well as other costs, was $15.1 million and the remaining property write-down reserve was
$16.1 million. With the adjustments described above, the Company believes the reserves are
adequate. The Company continues to negotiate lease terminations with landlords and actively market
closed stores for sale. However, due to a soft retail real estate maiket and the number of available
properties on the market, sales of owned stores and lease terminations have been slower than
anticipated. Accordingly, the level of reserves could prove to be inadequate such that additional
charges may be required. The Company will continue to evaluate the adequacy of the amounts
reserved as it proceeds with the disposition of the real estate and termination of the leases.
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Following is an analysis of the change in the restructuring reserve (in thousands) during fiscal

2001 and 2002:

Balanceasof Feb.3,2001 ...............
CashPayments ........................
OtherAdjustments . .....................

Balance asof Feb.2,2002 ...............

Additions. ... i
CashPaymenis ........................
Other Adjustments . .....................

Balanceasof Feb.1,2003 ...............

Lease Termination Empicyee
and Property Separation Other
Carrying Costs Costs Costs
$ 45,752 $9,134 $1,300
(13,691) (7,282) (1,072)
731 (1,852) 0
$ 32,792 $ 0 $ 228
438 0
(18,260) (113)
0 0
$14971  § 0§ 115

Net sales of the stores closed totaled $56.0 and $208.9 million in fiscal 2001 and 2000,

respectively.

D. Short-Term Debt

The Company had outstanding $40.0 million and $47.8 million under the revolving credit portion of
its Secured Credit Facility (see Note E), as of February 1, 2003 and February 2, 2002, respectively.
The related weighted average interest rates on borrowings outstanding at February 1, 2003 and

February 2, 2002 were 3.5% and 4.2%, respectively.

The Company also authorizes letters of credit to be issued during the ordinary course of business
as required by foreign vendors. As of February 1, 2003 and February 2, 2002, the Company had
outstanding letters of credit for $15.8 million and $19.8 million, respectively.

E. Long-Term Obligations and Leases

Feb. 1,

2003

Feb. 2,
2002

(in thousands)

Senior Unsecured Notes, 9.0% due November 15, 2004, less

unamortized discount of $8 and $12, respectively ................ $ 59,797 $ 72,698
Senior Unsecured Notes, 8.5% due March 15,2002 ............... 0 70,207
Senior Unsecured Notes, 9.25% due March 15, 2022, less

unamortized discount of $366 and $386, respectively ............ 99,634 99,614
Senior Unsecured Notes, 6.5% due August 15, 2003, less

unamortized discount of $13 and $42, respectively . .............. 89,182 99,958
Secured Credit Facility—term loan, 5.3% at February 2, 2002 ....... 0 100,000
Mortgage and other obligations . ............... ... .. .. .. ... ... 55,062 15,637
Capital lease qbligations ...................................... 111,456 127,295

415,131 585,409
Lesscurrent portion ... ... ..o e 95,554 79,942
Long-term obligations . ...........oieiiieinnn i $319,577 $505,467




The notes contain certain covenants which, among other things, restrict the ability of the Company
to consolidate, merge or convey, transfer or lease its properties and assets substantially as an entirety,
to create liens or to enter into sale and leaseback transactions. Payments due under the Senior
Unsecured Notes could be accelerated in the event the Company defaults on any obligation in excess
of $25 million.

On March 12, 2001, the Company entered into a $600.0 million senior secured revolving credit
and term loan facility (the “Secured Credit Facility”). The Secured Credit Facility, which terminates on
March 12, 2004, provided for revolving credit loans of up to $500.C million and a term loan of
$100.0 million, and may be extended for an additional year at the Company’s option, subject to certain
conditions. On December 10, 2002, the Company voluntarily terminated the term loan portion of the
Secured Credit Facility, reducing the overall commitment under the facility from $600.0 million to
$500.0 million. Amounts available under the Senior Credit Facility are limited based on a percentage of
inventory and accounts receivable. A total of $300.2 million was available as of February 1, 2003.
Borrowings under the facility are secured by accounts receivable and inventory and bear interest at the
bank’s base rate plus a margin of 0.0% to 0.5% or the Eurodollar rate plus a margin of 2.0% to 2.5%,
depending on borrowing availability under the facility and the Company’s operating cash flow. The
Secured Credit Facility prohibits the payment of dividends, limits new indebtedness, repurchases of
common stock and capital expenditures, and requires the Company to meet financial performance
covenants relating to borrowing availability and minimum operating cash flows.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company closed on a $50.0 million private placement
mortgage financing. The loan has a term of 10 years at an interest rate of 11 percent and is secured by
13 ShopKo stores and one distribution center. Principal payments are based on a 25-year amortization
schedule with a balloon payment due March 2012. Prepayments are permitted subject to certain
penalties. The loan was used to retire five lease liabilities associated with closed stores controlled by
affiliates of the lender, to provide additional liquidity, and to add a layer of longer term debt to the
Company’s capital structure.

The interest rates on the mortgage and other obligations range from 5.4% to 11.0% with maturities
ranging from October 2003 to March 2012 and are collateralized by property with & net book value of
$60.6 million at February 1, 2008.

Approximate annual maturities of long-term obligations, excluding capital leasss, for the five years
subsequent to the year ended February 1, 2003 are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Long-Term
Year Obligations
2008 e e e e $ 90,024
2004 e e e e 60,612
2005 e e e e 877
2008 L e e e 960
2007 e e e 4,582
101 (= 146,620
Total MatUrties ...ttt e $303,675

The Company leases certain stores and equipment under capital leases. Many of these leases
include renewal options, and occasionally, include options to purchase. In addition to its capital leases,
the Company is obligated under operating leases, primarily for land, buildings and computer
equipment.
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Minimum future obligations under capital and operating leases in effect at February 1, 2003 are as
follows (in thousands):

Capitai Lease Operating Lease

Fiscal Year Obiigations Obligations (1)
2003 . e e $ 16,390 $ 17,918
2004 . e e 16,003 15,830
2005 . e 15,294 14,051
2008 . o e 13,856 13,601
2007 13,567 13,247
Later. ... 125,114 85,477

Total minimum future obligations ......................... 200,224 $160,124
Lessinterest ......... .. ... . . . i (88,768)
Present value of minimum future obligations ................ $111,456

(1) Operating lease obligations excluding closed stores.

The present values of minimum future obligations shown above are calculated based on interest
rates ranging from 8.5% to 16.4% for capital leases determined to be applicable at the inception of the
capital leases.

Contingent rent expense, based primarily on sales performance, for capital and operating leases
was $0.8 million in fiscal 2002, $0.8 million in fiscal 2001 and $1.0 million in fiscal 2000. Total minimum
rental expense, net of sublease income, related to all operating leases with terms greater than one
year was $17.8, $19.9 and $26.1 million in fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Certain operating
leases require payments to be made on an escalating basis. The accompanying consolidated
statements of operations reflect rent expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the leases.

The Company is contingently liable on the lease payments for two former retail stores, which were
assumed by an unrelated party. Total remaining lease obligations for the stores are $10.9 million as of
February 1, 2003. The Company also indemnifies its directors for claims that may arise in performing
their duties as directors of the Company. There are no specified limits as to the exposure of the
Company, however, the Company does insure against this exposure with reputable insurance
providers in amounts deemed sufficient to cover any reasonable risk of loss.

F. [ncome Taxes

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax
purposes. For balance sheet reporting purposes, the current deferred tax liability of $29.8 million and
$19.9 million at February 1, 2003 and February 2, 2002, respectively, is included in deferred taxes and
other accrued liabilities.
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Components of the Company’s net deferred tax liability are as follows (in thousands):

2002 2001
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property andequipment .......... .. ... .. i $ 41,743 § 44,220
Intangibles . ... . .. 8,441 10,535
Inventory valuation ....... ... ... . . . .. . 48,431 36,020
Other . 5,337 5,667
Total deferred tax liabilities ............... ... ... ...... 103,952 96,442
Deferred tax assets:
Reservesand allowances ...ttt (26,308) (24,298)
Restructuring and impairmentreserves . ........... ... (9,332) (14,959)
Capitalleases ........... i e e (10,416)  (39,290)
Compensation and benefits ........... ... ... ... . oL (8,335) (5,413)
Total deferredtaxassets ............. ..o, (54,391) (53,960)
Net deferred tax liability ........... .. ... . . . i i i, $ 49,561 $ 42,482

The amounts reflected in the provision for income taxes are based on applicable federal statutory
rates, adjusted for permanent differences between financial and taxable income. The provision (credit)
for federal and state income taxes related to continuing operations includes the following (in
thousands):

2002 2001 2000
Current
Federal ........cc i e $17,802 $ (967) $ (8,699)
State .. e 2,178 (843) (994)
Deferred ... e e 7,079 23,425 (19,343)
Total provision (credit) .. ... ... . i $27,149 $21,615 $(29,036)

The effective tax rate related to continuing operations varies from the statutory federal income tax
rate for the following reasons:

2002 2001 2000

Statutory incometaxrate ............ .. .. ... e 35.0% 35.0% (35.0)%
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefits . .................. 4.1 4.6 3.7)
GoodWill . ..o e e e 0.0 3.6 2.4
Other .. 0.6 0.2 (0.4)
Effective income taxrate (benefit) . .......... ... ... 39.7% 43.4% (36.7)%

G. Preferred and Common Stock

The Company has 20,000,000 shares of $0.01 preferred stock authorized but unissued. There are
75,000,000 shares of $0.01 par value common stock authorized.

The Company’s Stock Option Plans and Stock Incentive Plans allow the granting of stock options
and other equity-based awards to various officers, directors and other employees of the Company at
prices not less than 100 percent of fair market value, determined by the closing price on the date of
grant. The Company has 570,985 shares available for issuance under the plans as of February 1,
2003. Options vest generally over two to five years. Most stock options vest immediately upon a
change of control.
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Option activity is summarized as follows (shares/options in thousands):

Weighted Ave.
Shares Price Range Exercise Price
Outstanding, January 29,2000 .................. 2,638 $10.00 - $37.63 $22.62
Granted ...... ... e 800 5.31-18.19 8.37
Exercised ........ ... {(203) 10.00 - 17.88 14.26
Cancelled andforfeited ........................ (429) 5.31-34.88 24.79
Qutstanding, February 3,2001 .................. 2,806 5.31-37.63 18.83
Granted .......... ... 807 7.30-10.10 8.61
Exercised ....... ... i e 0 N/A N/A
Cancelled andforfeited ................ ... .... (546) 5.31 - 37.63 17.55
QOutstanding, February 2,2002 .................. 3,067 5.31 - 37.63 16.37
Granted ....... ... o e 684 11.70-19.85 14.29
Exercised ......... ... i (229) 5.31-17.06 16.49
Cancelledand forfeited ........................ (412) 5.31-36.44 16.17
Outstanding February 1,2003 ................... 3,110 $5.31-$37.63 $16.55
Options Weighted Ave.
Exercisable Exercise Price

February 1,2003 .. ... ... . i 1,729 $19.32

February2,2002 .. ... ... . i 1,347 20.36

February 3,2001 ... ... ... . e 988 19.10

The following tables summarize
(shares in thousands):

Options Outstanding

information about stock options outstanding at February 1, 2003

Shares Outstanding

Range of Exercise at
Feb. 1, 2003

Weighted Average
Remaining Contractuai

Weighted Average

Prices Life Exercise Price
$5.31 to $15.00 1,609 8.4 years $ 9.80
15.88to0 23.31 991 6.0 20.66
24.56t0 37.63 _510 ___ 55 29.53
$5.31 to $37.63 3,110 7.2 years $16.55

Options Exercisable
Range of Exercise Shares Exercisable at Weighted Average
Prices Feb. 1, 2003 Exercise Price
$5.31to $15.00 468 $ 8.41
15.88 to 23.31 820 20.39
24.56 to 37.63 441 28.90
$5.31 10 $37.63 1,729 $19.32

The weighted average fair value of options granted was $7.54, $3.58 and $3.50 per share in fiscal
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The fair value of stock options is computed as the estimated
present value at grant date using the Black-Scholes option-pricing mode! with weighted average

assumptions as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Risk-free interestrate ........... ... ... . . it 3.2% 4.3% 5.2%
Expected volatility ............. ... ... . o it 66.6% 59.3% 55.4%
Dividendyield ......... ... . i 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Expected option life, standard option {(years) ............ 4.0 1.0t05.0 1.0t05.0




in fiscal 1983, the Company adopted a Restricted Stock Plan, which provides awards of up to
200,000 shares of common stock to key employees of the Company. Plan participants are entitled to
cash dividends, if any, and to vote their respective shares. Restrictions limit the sale or transfer of the
shares during a restricted period. During fiscal 2002 and 2001, the Company issued 117,500 and
25,000 shares, respectively, of restricted stock with a fair value as of the grant date between
$11.70 and $19.60 per share in fiscal 2002 and $7.30 per share in fiscal 2001. There were
142,500 shares and 25,000 shares of restricted stock outstanding at February 1, 2003 and
February 2, 2002, respectively.

H. Employee Benefits

Substantially all employees of the Company are covered by a defined contribution profit sharing
plan. The plan for ShopKo and Pamida employees was amended in fiscal 2001 and provides for two
types of company contributions: an amount determined annually by the Board of Directors and an
employer matching contribution equal to one hundred percent of the first 3 percent and fifty percent of
the next 2 percent of compensation contributed by participating employees. The matching contribution
in fiscal 2000 was equal to one-half of the first 6 percent of compensation for ShopKo employees and
one-half of the first 5 percent of compensation for Pamida employees. Contributions were
$14.3, $7.4 and $5.3 million for fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The Company also provides certain postretirement benefits, other than pensions. Costs
associated with these benefits are accrued during the employee’s service period. The annual cost and
accumulated benefit obligation associated with these benefils are not material.

{. Fair Values of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, accounts payable, accrued
liabilities and shori-term debt approximate their fair value. The fair values of the Company’s long-term
obligations are estimated using quoted market values or discounted cash flow analysis based on
interest rates that are currently available to the Company for issuance of debt with similar terms and
remaining maturities.

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Company’s long-term obligations (excluding capital
leases) at February 1, 2003 and February 2, 2002 are as follows (amounts in thousands):

February 1, February 2,

2003 2002
Carryingamount ... ... i $303,675 $458,114
Fairvalue ... i i 299,832 389,652

J. Business Segment Infermation

The Company's reportable segments are based on the Company’s strategic business operating
units, and include a ShopKo Retail segment (which includes ShopKo stores hardlines and softlines
merchandise and Retail Health operations, comprised of pharmacy and optical centers) and a Pamida
Retail segment (which includes Pamida stores hardlines and softlines merchandise and retail
pharmacy operations).

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of
significant accounting policies. The Company evaluates performance based on operating earnings of
the respective business segments.
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Summarized financial information concerning the Company’s reportable segments is shown in the
following table (in thousands):

Fiscal Years

2002 2001 2000
Net sales
ShopKoRetail ............... .. i $2,456,094 $2,538,920 $2,710,885
PamidaRetail ............ ... ..o i, 784,083 835,015 806,227
Totalnetsales ...........cvviiiiii i $3,240,187 $3,373,935 $3,517,112
Earnings (loss) from operations
ShopKoRetail ............ ... .. i, $ 147,075 $ 151,393 $ 118,735
PamidaRetail ............ ... ... .. . i 11,256 (12,668) 23,150
Corporate(1) ..ot e (37,685) (23,128)  (154,935)
Earnings (loss) from operations .................. $ 120,646 $ 115597 $ (13,050)
Depreciation and amortization expenses
ShopKoRetail ............ . .. . $ 60051 $ 64,164 $ 70,602
PamidaRetail .............. ... .. i 22,641 26,693 22,350
Corporate ... e 645 805 1,127
Total depreciation and amortization expenses ... ... $ 83337 $ 91662 $ 94,079
Capital expenditures
ShopKoRetail ......... ... o i $ 22,742 $ 13,662 $ 110,089
PamidaRetail .............. ... .. i 8,073 3,485 84,769
Corporate ........ ... 65 51 1,389
Total capital expenditures . . ..................... $ 30880 $ 17,198 §$ 196,247
Category Sales Analysis:
ShopKo Retail
Hardlines ... ..ot i $1,302,926 $1,397,252 $1,539,642
Softlines . ... e 491,918 521,310 584,515
RetailHealth ........... ... ... .. i, 661,250 620,358 586,728
Totalnetsales ................ccciiiiiiinin... $2,456,094 $2,538,920 $2,710,885
Pamida Retail _
Hardlines ... i i e $ 523,423 $ 579,080 $ 564,132
Softlines .. ...t e 137,201 150,822 157,309
Retail Pharmacy ..., 123,469 105,113 84,786
Totalnetsales .............cciiiii .t $ 784,093 $ 835,015 $ 806,227
As of February 1, As of February 2, As of February 3,
2003 2002 2001
Assets
ShopKoRetail ............. ... ot $1,075,964 $1,148,847 $1,300,080
PamidaRetail ........................... 410,634 653,492 704,202
Corporate . ...t 18,369 17,697 22,654
Totalassets ...............ccccivunn. $1,504,967 $1,820,036 $2,026,936

(1) Included in Corporate are restructuring charges of $6.0 million and $125.0 million in fiscal 2002
and 2000, respectively, and special charges of $9.2 million in fiscal 2000.
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K. Unaudited Quarterly Financial Information

Unaudited quarterly financial information is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended February 1, 2003

Flrst Second Third Fourth Year
{13 Weeks) {13 Weeks) (13 Weeks} (13 Weeks)}3) (52 Weeks)

{In thousands, except per share data)

Netsales .................... $728,764 $783,369 $768,610 $958,444 $3,240,187
Grossmargin . ................ 184,925 199,467 180,803 258,005 833,300
Earnings from continuing

operations ................. 472 7,205 877 32,679(3) 41,233(3)
Net earnings (loss) ............ (185,580)(1) 7,205 877 32,679(3) (144,819)(1),(3)

Basic earnings from continuing

operations per

commonshare.............. $0.02 $0.25 $0.03 $1.13(3) $1.43(3)
Diluted earnings from continuing

operations per

commonshare.............. $0.02 $0.25 $0.03 $1.12(3) $1.41(3)
Weighted average shares—

diluted .................... 29,210 29,320 29,267 29,253 29,218
Price range per common $22.48 $21.46 $17.00 $16.21 $22.48

share (2) .................. -$12.51 -$15.15  -8$11.00 -$10.76 -$10.76

Fiscal Year Ended February 2, 2002

Flrst Second Third Fourth Year
{13 Weeks) {13 Weeks) (13 Weeks) {13 Weeks) (52 Weeks)

{in thousands, except per share data)

Netsales .................... $781,824 $791,181 $797,540 $1,003,390 $3,373,935
Grossmargin................. 175,020 184,945 177,904 268,266 806,135
Earnings (loss) from continuing

operations ................. (4,045) 2,594 (5,218) 34,886 28,217
Net earnings (loss) ............ (4,045) 2,594 (5,218) 34,886 28,217

Basic (loss) earnings from

continuing operations per

commonshare.............. $(0.14) $0.09 $(0.18) $1.22 $0.98
Diluted (loss) earnings from

continuing operations per

commonshare.............. $(0.14) $0.09 $(0.18) $1.21 $0.98
Weighted average shares—

diluted .................... 28,698 28,808 28,689 28,869 28,838
Price range per common $10.7C $9.00 $9.74 $12.68 $12.68

share (2) .................. -$7.35 - $6.79 -$7.20 - $8.56 - $6.79

(1) Includes cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle for goodwill of $186,052 ($6.36 per
dilutive share).

(2) Price range per common share reflects the highest and lowest stock market prices on the New
York Stock exchange during each quarter.

(3) Includes pre-tax restructuring charge of $6.0 million.
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ShopKo Stores, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Schedule }l. Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Balance Charges
At to Balance
Be$lnnlng Costs & Deductions at End of
of Year Expenses (Additions) Year

{in thousands)

Year (53 weeks) ended February 3, 2001:

Allowanceforlosses................ccouiuinnt. $2,713 $618 $ 969" $2,362

Inventory valuationreserves .................... 2,400 1,585 815
Year (52 weeks) ended February 2, 2002:

Allowanceforlosses............. ..., $2,362 $394 $ (464)* $3,220

Inventory valuationreserves .................... 815 (1,765) 2,580
Year (52 weeks) ended February 1, 2003:

Allowanceforlosses................coivinn... $3,220 $578 $1,187* $2,611

Inventory valuationreserves .................... 2,580 282 2,298

* Net of charges to accounts other than bad debt expense, primarily promotion and advertising.

Note: Schedule excludes accounts of discontinued operations
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalif by the undersigned thereunto duly
authorized.

SHopPKo STORES, INC. (Registrant)

Date: April 11, 2003 By: . /s/  Sam K. DUNCAN

Sam K. Duncan,
Chief Executive Officer, President
{Duly Authorized Officer of Registrant)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates
indicated:

Signature _'Et_la_s Qa_t_g
/s/ Sam K. DUNCAN Chief Executive Officer, President April 11, 2003
Sam K. Duncan and Director
/s/ JEFFREY C. GIRARD Vice Chairman, Finance and April 11, 2003
Jeffrey C. Glrard Administration and Director
/s/ Brian W. BENDER Senior Vice President, Chief April 11, 2003
Brian W. Bender Financial Officer
/s/ PETER J. O'DONNELL Principal Accounting Officer April 11, 2003
Peter J. G’'Donnell
/s/  JACK W. EUGSTER* Chairman of the Board April 11, 2003
Jack W. Eugster
/s/ DALE P. KRAMER* Director April 11, 2003
Dale P. Kramer
/s/  MARTHA A. MCPHEE" Director April 11, 2003
Martha A, McPhee
/s/  JOHN G. TURNER* Director April 11, 2003
John G. Turner
/s/  STEPHEN E. WATSON* Director April 11, 2003
Stephen E. Watson
/s/ GREGORY H. WOLF* Director April 11, 2003
Gregory H. Wolf
/s/ RICHARD A. ZONA* Director Aprii 11, 2003

Richard A. Zona

* By Steven R. Andrews pursuant to Powers of Attorney.
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CERTIFICATIONS

I, Sam K. Duncan, certify that:

1.
2.

! have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of ShopKo Stores, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light
of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual
report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for
the registrant and we have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is
being prepared;

(b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a
date within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date™);
and

(¢) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The registrant’'s other certifying officers and | have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

(a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could
adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
data and have identified for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal
controls; and

{b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

The registrant’s other certifying officers and | have indicated in this annual report whether or
not there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could
significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation,
including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses.

Date: April 11, 2003

/s/  Sam K. DUNCAN

By: Sam K. Duncan
Title:Chief Executive Officer, President
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I, Brian W. Bender, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of ShopKo Stores, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light
of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual
report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for
the registrant and we have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is
being prepared,;

(b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a
date within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”);
and

(c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and | have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation, to the registrant's auditors and the audit commitiee of registrant's board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

(a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and repoit financial
data and have identified for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal
controls; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

8. The registrant’s other certifying officers and | have indicated in this annual report whether or
not there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could
significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation,
including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses.

Date: April 11, 2003

/s/ BriaN W. BENDER

By: Brian W. Bender
Title:Senior Vice President, Chief Financial
Cfficer
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4.1.1

4.2

4.2.1

4.3

EXHIBIT INDEX
SHOPKO STORES, INC.

10-K REPCRT
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Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of May 10, 1999, by and
among the Company, ShopKo Merger Corp. and Pamida Holdings
Corporation, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99(c) (1) to the
Registrant's Schedule 14D-1 filed May 17, 1999.

Amended and restated Articles of incorporation of the Company,
incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form
8-K dated May 22, 1998 (the “May 1998 Form 8-K”).

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company, incorporated by
reference to the Registrant’'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the 13
weeks ended July 28, 2000.

Indenture dated as of March 12, 1992 between the Company and First
Trust National Association, as trustee, with respect to senior notes due
March 15, 2022 (“2022 Indenture”), incorporated by reference from the
Registrant’s Form 10-K, Annual Report to the Securities and Exchange
Commission for the 53 weeks ended February 29, 1992.

First Supplemental Indenture dated as of May 22, 1998, between the
Company and U.S. Bank Trust, as Trustee, with respect to the 2022
Indenture, incorporated by reference to the May 1998 Form 8-K.

Indenture dated as of July 15, 1993 between the Company and First
Trust National Association, as Trustee (“Senior Debt Indenture”),
incorporated by reference from the Registrant's Form 10-K, Annual
Report to the Securities and Exchange Commission for the 52 weeks
ended February 26, 1994.

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 22, 1998, between the
Company and U.S. Bank Trust, as Trustee, with respect to the Senior
Debt Indenture, incorporated by reference to the May 1998 Form 8-K.

Rights Agreement between the Company and Norwest Bank Minnesota,
National Association, dated as of July 3, 1892, as amended and
restated as of September 24, 1997 (including form of preferred stock
designation), (“Rights Agreement”) incorporated by reference from the
Registrant's Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Form 8-A/A
dated September 29, 1997.

Rights Agreement Amendment, incorporated by reference to May 1998
Form 8-K.

Loan and Security Agreement dated as of March 9, 2001 (“Secured
Credit Facility”y among ShopKo Stores, Inc., Pamida, Inc., subsidiaries
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Exhibit
Number

4.4

10.1

10.2

10.3

1.4

10.5

10.8

10.7

Exhibit

of ShopKo Stores, Inc., named therein, as guarantors, the banks,
named therein, and Fleet Retail Finance Inc., as Administrative Agent,
incorporated by reference from the Registrant’s Form 10-K, Annual
Report to the Securities and Exchange Commission for the 53 weeks
ended February 3, 2001.

Loan Agreement between ShopKo Stores, Inc. and Kimco Select
Investments, dated March 27, 2002, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
March 27, 2002.

ShopKo Stores, Inc. 1881 Stock Option Plan, incorporated by reference
to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration
No. 33-42283). (1)

Amendment to Section 11 of ShopKo Stores, Inc. 1991 Stock Option
Plan, incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s definitive Proxy
Statement dated May 8, 1295 filed in connection with the Registrant’s
1995 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. (1)

Form of Stock Option Agreement and First Amendment thereto between
the Company and certain Officers and Employees of the Company
pursuant to the ShopKo Stores, Inc. 1991 Stock Option Plan,
incorporated by reference from the Registrant’s Form 10-K, Annual
Report to the Securities and Exchange Commission for the 52 weeks
ended February 25, 1995. (1)

Alternative Form of Stock Option Agreement between the Company and
certain Officers and Employees of the Company pursuant to the
ShopKo Stores, Inc. 1991 Stock Option Plan, incorporated by reference
from the Registrant’'s Form 10-K, Annual Report to the Securities and
Exchange Commission for the 52 weeks ended February 25, 1995. (1)

ShopKo Stores, Inc. 1995 Stock Option Plan, incorporated by reference
from the Registrant’s Form 10-Q, Quarterly Report to the Securities and
Exchange Commission for the 12 weeks ended December 2, 1895. (1)

Form of Change of Control Severance Agreement between the
Company and Certain Cfficers and Employees of the Company,
incorporated by reference from the Registrant’s Form 10-K, Annual
Report to the Securities and Exchange Commission for the 52 weeks
ended February 25, 1985. (1)

Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Company and directors
and certain officers of the Company, incorporated by reference to the
Registrant's Form 10-Q, Quarterly Report to the Securities and
Exchange Commission for the 13 weeks ended August 1, 1998.
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10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

Exhibit

ShopKo Senior Officers Deferred Compensation Plan, amended and
restated effective August 21, 2002, incorporated by reference from the
Registrant’s Form 10-Q, Quarterly Report to the Securities and
Exchange Commission for the 13 weeks ended November 2, 2002. (1)

ShopKo Directors Deferred Compensation Plan, amended and restated
effective August 21, 2002, incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s
Form 10-Q, Quarterly Report to the Securities and Exchange
Commission for the 13 weeks ended November 2, 2002. (1)

ShopKo Stores, Inc. 1993 Restricted Stock Plan, as amended,
incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s definitive Proxy Statement
dated May 19, 1994 filed in connection with the Registrant's 1994
Annual Meeting of Shareholders. (1)

ShopKo Stores, Inc. 1998 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated by
reference to the Registrant’s definitive Proxy Statement dated April 10,
1998 filed in connection with the Registrant’s 1998 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders. (1)

ShopKo Stores, Inc. 1999 Executive Incentive Plan incorporated by
reference to the Registrant’s definitive Proxy Statement dated April 19,
1999 filed in conjunction with the Registrant’s 1999 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders. (1)

ShopKo Stores, Inc. 2000 Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan,
incorporated by reference from the Registrant’s definitive Proxy
Statement dated April 17, 2000 filed in connection with the Registrant’s
2000 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. (1)

ShopKo Stores, Inc. Executive Retirement Plan, dated February 1999,
incorporated by reference from the Registrant's Annual Report on Form
10-K for the 52 weeks ended January 29, 2000. (1)

ShopKo Stores, Inc. 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated by
reference to the Registrant’s definitive Proxy Statement dated May 1,
2001 filed in conjunction with the Registrant’s 2001 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders. (1)

Letter Agreement, dated May 15, 2001, between ShopKo Stores, Inc.
and Jack W. Eugster, incorporated by reference to the Registrant’'s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the 13 weeks ended August 4, 2001.
(1)

Form of Change of Control Severance Agreement between the
Company and Certain Officers and Employees of the Company,
incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the 52 weeks ended February 2, 2002. (1)
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10.18 ShopKo Stores, Inc. Shared Savings Plan (2002 Restatement), formerly
known as ShopKo Stores, Inc. Profit Sharing and Super Saver Plan
Trust Agreement, incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the 52 weeks ended February 2, 2002. (1)

10.18 Employment Agreement, dated April 8, 2002 between ShopKo Stores,
inc. and Jeffrey C. Girard, incorporated by reference to the Registrant's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the 13 weeks ended May 4, 2002,

(1)

10.20 Letter Agreement, dated April 30, 2002, between ShopKo Stores, inc.
and William J. Podany, incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the 13 weeks ended May 4, 2002.

(1)

10.21 Employment Agreement, dated October 28, 2002 between ShopKo
Stores, Inc. and Sam K. Duncan, incorporated by reference {o the
Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the 13 weeks ended
November 2, 2002, (1)

21.1* Subsidiaries of the Registrant.
23.14* Consent of Deloitie & Touche LLP.
24.1* Directors’ Powers of Attorney.

29.1* Statement of Sam K. Duncan, Chief Executive Cfficer, President,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. ss. 1350

g9.2* Statement of Brian W. Bender, Senior Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. ss. 1350

*  Filed herewith
(i) A management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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Corporate data

Sharehoiders’ information

ShopKo Stores, Inc. common shares are listed on the New York
Stock Exchange under the symbol “SKO” and in newspapers as
“ShopKo.” As of April 4,2003, ShopKo’s common shares were
held by 2,495 record shareholders.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

For help with questions regarding lost, stolen or destroyed stock
certificates, consolidation of accounts, transferring of shares and
name and address changes, call Wells Fargo Shareowner Services
at 1.800.468.9716, or write them at:

Wells Fargo Shareowner Services
161 North Concord Exchange
South St. Paul, MN 55075-1139

Annual Meeting

The annual meeting of shareholders will be held May 28, 2003
at 10 am. at St. Norbert College, Bemis International Center,
100 Grant Street, De Pere, Wisconsin.

investor Relations

A copy of the Company’s reports filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission will be furnished without charge to any
shareholder upon written request. Written requests should be

directed to:

Vicki Shamion

Director of Investor Relations
ShopKo Stores, Inc.

PO. Box 19060

Green Bay, WI 54307-9060

You can reach ShopKo via the internet at:

www.shopko.com -

Qur website provides a host of information about the company,
inciuding but not limited to recent quarterly webcasts, the
Form 10-K, annual report, recent press releases and other

pertinent information.

Pamida Stores
PO.Box 3856
Omaha, NE 68103-0856

www.pamida.com

ShopKo Stores
PO. Box 19060
Green Bay, W] 54307-3060

www.shopko.com

* Shopl{o Headquarters

* Pamida Headquarters

Q ShopKo Distribution Centers

Q Pamida Distribution Centers

O ShoplKo Stores

O Pamida Stores






